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Incline Village, Nevada - 8/6/2024 - 6:00 P.M. 

-o0o-

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It's six o'clock.  I'd
like to call the IVGID Board of Trustees meeting to
order at six o'clock here on August 6th, 893
Southwood Boulevard in Incline Village, Nevada.  

We will begin with the Pledge of
Allegiance.
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on to the roll

call.
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tonking?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Noble?
We'll let the record reflect when Trustee

Noble arrives. 
Trustee Dent?
TRUSTEE DENT:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm Trustee Sara Schmitz,
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   5
so we have a quorum of our Board of Trustees.  We
will begin with initial public comments, that will
be limited to three minutes.

Let the record reflect Trustee Noble is
here.
C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 

MR. SWENSON:  Good evening.  I'm Harry
Swenson, currently a candidate for the trustee for
the Incline Village/Crystal Bay community.  I'm
here.  I'm a 10-year, full-time resident, and live
on lower Tyner.

I come to the Board to express my views on
the proposal by the Troon corporation to directly
assist Incline in finding and recruiting a new
general manager.  I would like to thank Erin Feore,
Director of Human Resources for IVGID.  Her
solicitation of this proposal from Troon
demonstrated out-of-the-box thinking to replace our
departing general manager with an organization that
has extensive experience in solving to current
challenges this community if facing.

I'm intrigued by the Troon proposal to
provide us a well qualified general manager who will
have access and the ability to draw on Troon's
extensive experience and not only their well-know

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   6
hospitality organizations but also have extensive
experience in the government sector.  

I believe the Board should give this
proposal their utmost consideration.  The proposal
depth of knowledge of our community challenges in
both financial and leadership areas.  The proposal
supplies a continuous consulting for our challenges
over a three-year term that appear very cost
effective.  

As a matter of fact over the last
few years, we have spent a similar amount of
resources for consultants that simply identify our
challenges, but do not have the capability to guide
and executive their solutions.  

The only weakness I see in the proposal is
the lack of clearly defined metrics.  I suggest you
include a metric for our financial sustainability,
such as a reduction by 50 percent of our budget
deficit in the first year, followed by the complete
deficit elimination over the next two years without
increasing our parcel fee.  I would also suggest
something with regard to our capital improvements
and elimination of deferred maintenance.  

In the words of Albert Einstein, doing the
same thing and expecting different results is the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   7
surest form of insanity.  This proposal is surely
something very different for selecting a new general
manager and might changes the results of his tenure.  

Thank you for your consideration.
MR. McKINNON:  Good evening.  I would also

like to discuss the Troon proposal.  I would like to
thank the Board of Trustees of allowing me to speak.
My name is Keith McKinnon.  My wife Patty and I live
here in Incline Village.  Like all of us at Incline,
we love our village, and we only want the very best
for our community.  

I have not spoken to the Board before, but
I would like you to take a look at my background.
My business background is finance and accounting.
Over the last 25 years, I've served in a variety of
accounting roles, including chief financial officer
for multiple companies in the high tech industry.
I've had the opportunity to work with boards of
directors in each of these firms.  My job was to
inform and to counsel the boards of directors from a
financial perspective on various business
opportunities and challenges.

In each of these situations,
multi-million-dollar business were never made
hastily.  Appropriate due diligence and thorough
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   8
financial reviews were always conducted.  

The Troon proposal is a significant
business decision with significant financial
ramifications.  This is a decision that could
potentially burden the Village financially and
legally for years ago to come.

Unfortunately, the Troon proposal
submitted to the trustees is a marketing document
with a term sheet stuck on the end of it.  The
proposal includes no financial details, and there's
no way to perform a responsible financial review on
this generic document.  

Or director of HR has been the sole
contact between IVGID Troon management.  

Some of my initial questions would be:
Where's the financial analysis with this?  What's
the internal rate of return for this
multi-million-dollar project we're getting into?  Is
Troon proposing managing all operations for IVGID or
are they just cherry picking the golf course?  What
does Troon know about utilities and public works?  

In the proposal states that Troon will
manage IVGID daily operations for three years at a
total cost approaching $1 million.  Again, this is
Troon's marketing number.  It would not surprise me
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after conducting a thorough financial review, the
real number could be twice that amount.  We don't
know tonight.  We have no idea what that number is.
My recommendation to the Board is to shelve the
Troon proposal.  There's not enough information for
a serious review.

Two of the board members that currently
support this proposal will be leaving in the next
few months.  It would be careless and irresponsible
to force through a financial decision tonight that
could harm us financially for years.  

In fact, there are those that would
interpret this action as a knowingly egregious act
that could result in personal liability.  Why would
any board member want to put themselves or this
village in that situation.  I urge you --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MR. PRICE:  Steve Price, 170 Village

Boulevard.
Having lived at Lake Tahoe since 1976,

first under North Tahoe General Improvement
District, and under IVGID since 1992, I have
observed a number of different boards and general
managers.  Some of them very good, some marginal.
Until now, none were less than marginal as
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  10
exemplified by the consistent three-to-two votes on
all major issues.  

I cannot believe that a majority of this
board now proposes to outsource our management to a
management company that has no experience in
managing a community of our complexity.  And then
that manager's going to select a general manager?
And why would you spent over a million dollars over
a three-year period to outsource this board's
responsibility?  

Maybe this board should recognize that
many former senior and mid-level managers left due
to the disfunctional nature of the Board.  Of those
who left, some are now employed by North Tahoe
General Improvement District, including their new
general manager.  

In my opinion, the current board has not
been successful in hiring a highly qualified general
manager due to the nature of the Board.  My
recommendation is to wait until a November election
before spending one dime.

Finally, a meeting of this magnitude
should not be here, should be at The Chateau, and
not in a place that has limited room and Zoom.

Thank you.
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MS. ROSS:  Good evening.  My name is

Steven Ross.  I want to thank you for the
opportunity to speak with you tonight about your
consideration of a three-year contract with the
Troon management company.

In Troon's presentation, the first item
that they mention is the reason they should be
considered is the recent turnover in general
manager's position.  I believe they state there's
been three in the last two years.  

I believe that the reason for the
excessive turnover in the general manager's position
is the hostile work environment that reasonable
manager would tolerate.

As trustees of this governmental
organization, you have a few responsibilities.  You
should set policies of the present-day activities.
These give direction to the people who work in our
community and enhance or social capital.  All social
groups need some basic rules of behavior, and our
IVGID employees need these guidelines.  

Unfortunately, this board has not
succeeded in providing these guidelines.  No wonder
the staff and general manager walk on eggs trying to
figure out which way the wind is blowing this week.  
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A perfect example was you failure to

establish pricing policy for our recreation
facilities as outlined in your last meeting.  You
state that you didn't even though how much -- what
the amount of subsidy was that provided to each of
the recreation facilities.  I personally pointed
this out to you two years ago.  

Your next job is to set goals for the
organization.  There is not a single goal enumerated
in your strategic plan.  How are the general manager
and the rest of the employees supposed to know what
your vision is for the future?  

Finally, your third primary function as a
trustee is to monitor and assess the progress.  Your
general manager and their staff have made in
accomplishing the goals that you have provided.
You've done none of this.  

I'm not suggesting that your job is an
easy one.  I just wonder if the solution is to ask
an expensive management company to do this job.
This will costs taxpayers millions of dollars over
the three-year life of this potential contract.  

I'm not suggesting that you're not bright
or invested in the community's best interest.
Sometimes things just don't work out.  Maybe it's

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 66 of 271



  13
time to let another board that will be elected in
November have the opportunity to set things stright
before we give up local control of the community.

Thank you very much.
MS. RECTOR:  Thank you, Board.  This is a

first for me.  Over 20 years with IVGID, and I've
never attended a board meeting, ever.  Former IVGID
employee of over 20 years, and full-time, year-round
property owner since 1992.  You do the math.

I have three points to make tonight.
First, why would the lame duck board majority, one
trustees who is selling and not returning, one
trustee who is termed out, and one soon to be in the
minority be in charge of replacing their only
employee with a management company when you have
repeatedly told lame duck Bobby that he shouldn't
have hired the very qualified Director of Public
Works and Director of Parks and Rec?  

Second you want to replace your only
employee with a management company that doesn't have
any governmental experience.  

IVGID was founded as a body corporate and
public and a quasi-municipal corporation providing
water, sewer, recreation, trash -- yeah, you know
that.  IVGID is not running a bunch of business to
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earn a profit.  By the way, Troon's proposal
included in your board packet has several typos
starting on page 4.  That should be cause for
concern, especially for the lame duck board
majority.  

And third, where's the money coming from?
I have a suspicion Chair Schmitz wrote this board
memo because staff is required tell the Board how an
item is to be funded.  So, where's the budget?

You decimated the general fund last year,
and you're on the fast track to do it again.  We
can't afford the Board majority's decisions anymore.

Thank you.
MR. KENT:  Thank for the opportunity to

come and say a few comments about the Troon
proposal.

First of all, from our meetings last year
during the budget committee, our food service
operations combined with all the different
facilities and revenue as about $3.5 million and net
profit was around $100,000, so when you look at a
proposal like this where they are going to want
risk-free $330,000 per year for three-years, when
you have financials that look like they do, means
that Troon would have come in and perform four times
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the net profit level that we're making today just to
break even in what they proposed.

From a perspective of Troon itself, I've
probably golfed at 12 of their facilities all across
the Unites States from Florida to Hawaii, and
there's no question that it is a great organization,
they have a lot of really valuable resources.  But
if you're going to approach an opportunity like
this, you have to structure the deal so the risk is
shared.

Right now, it's not structured where we're
carrying a hundred percent of the risk.  So in the
negotiation process, when you are bringing a group
in like this, you should certainly focus on the
bottom line financials of what you're trying to
achieve, and then have some kind of profit split
mechanism on the bottom line to where both of us are
sharing in that risk.  That's the only way I would
even recommend we consider looking at it.  I don't
think we could look at it where we carry a hundred
percent of the risk of the opportunity.

Thank you.
MR. HOURIGAN:  Good evening.  I'm Vince

Hourigan, 101 Red Cedar, Incline Village.
My big concern of this is there is no
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public works experience from Troon.  None.  I'm a
licensed engineer in three states out West here.  I
have worked public works and public work-type
project my entire 40-year-plus career.  You just
don't bring a golf manager and say now you're in
charge of Public Works.  You got to get somebody
whose broad base includes public works, includes
hospitality, includes all aspects of the financials.
Not just a one-source person.  

I've golfed at many Troon golf coursers.
Some, I like; some, I don't.  I've seen some go
downhill because of it.  But, still, they are a golf
team and probably a pretty good golf team, some
places, but they're not a public works team.  

You got to get somebody who understands
public works because our primary goal here is to
make sure people have water, sewage, and trash
pickup, not just the golf or the skiing or the Rec
Center.  They're all big pluses, that's why I
retired here.  But I like my water.  I like my
sewage.

That's all I have.  Thank you.
MR. HESTMARK:  Hi.  My name is Martin

Hestmark.  My wife and I have been coming to Incline
Village when my parents retired here.  My wife and I
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have owned a home here since 2012.  

I appreciate the opportunity to provide
these communities, but I believe this decision
should either not be made as recommended, to hire
contractor, and/or should be subjected to
collaborative, full community vetting before a
decision is made.  

To my knowledge in all my time here,
Incline Village has never been managed by a
contractor, let alone a contractor who has little
experience beyond managing golf courses.

In addition, I remember being at a meeting
less than two years ago at one of our community
member's homes where Ray, Matt, and Dave were asked,
point blank, if you favored privatization of our
venues or private management of our venues.  All
three of you stated to our faces you had no such
plans.  

Sara, you didn't attend.  
I also saw no recommendation in the Moss

Adams or RubinBrown reports to privatize or contract
out management of our community.  There were
recommendations for how to make things better, which
staff are working on now, but none of them included
turning over management of our community to a
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contractor.  I ask:  Why now?  The answer seems
obvious:  It is easy to fire people, and to so
poorly manage people that they leave a community
that love.  It is not easy to be a competent trustee
and manage the people we need to run or venues and
facilities so we can enjoy them.

Staff and senior management are, arguably,
our most important assets.  By changing policy
unnecessarily to disallow staff access to our venues
and firing or running off our senior managers with
no succession plan in direct contravention of the
recommendations in the RubinBrown report, you
three have placed the District in a position where
you now feel our only option is hire a for-profit
contractor who knows very little about the entirety
of our community or venues.  

This contractor would not be as
approachable and our expenses would be greater.
This is a for-profit enterprise.  And why do we need
this?  Because you haven't done your job.

I asked that this decision be deferred
until after the election.  I also ask that this
decision wait until full community involvement
occurs, and that results of the community
involvement are shared with us.  I find it
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disrespectful and disgraceful that this grenade is
being launched over your shoulder on your way out
the door.  

Thank you.
MS. HOURIGAN:  Hello.  My name is Cari

Hourigan.  I'm at 101 Red Cedar, number 16, in
Incline Village.  

And, basically, ditto to the last person.
I'm very much against the Troon proposal, and thank
you very much.

MR. KELLY:  Hello.  I'm Mark Kelly,
resident here since last October.  Prior to that, I
lived in Tustin, California, and I was a long-time
member of Tustin Ranch Golf Club.  It has a lot of
similarities to our club here.  It was a public
course with a real private feel, staff that knew
you, the course was in beautiful condition all the
time, men's and women's club that made the pricing
more accessible, and it was a great place to play
golf and have a social life.  

Then there was a change of ownership, and
they hired Troon.  Within months, staff left,
qualify of play went down, they started having big
tournaments from outside groups so that those of us
that had normal tee times got squeezed out.  The
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result was we just left.  And, you know, really
disappointed in Troon.

I don't think, at least, they could manage
that golf course.  Maybe they're good at big
courses, but sure as hell don't know anything about
a ski resort and public works, as you've heard from
previous speakers, so I don't see why you would even
trust them with that.  Let the new board and the
public hearings determine what direction we take.

Thank you.
MS. EVANS:  Hi.  My name is Cheryl Evans.

I have lived in and owned property in Incline for
nearly 25 years.  During that time, I can't recall a
more divided and acrimonious relationship between
the Board of Trustees and the community.  

Incline Village was created almost
140 years ago, and IVGID was developed in 1961.  In
the nearly 50 years since, Incline has completed
major purchases and renovations which continue to
improve our community as well as increasing our
property values.  

Now let's fast forward to just two years
ago.  Under the current board, we have gone from
having a healthy surplus of cash to be being heavily
in debt.  It seems to us, the community members,
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that this board is forgetting that you work for the
community.  You seem to have your own agenda in
mind, and that means destroying the community we all
love.  Many of your decisions have been rash and
unprofessional.  Three GMS in the past two years,
and the last one employed for less than six months.  

This is only to beginning of the high
employee turnover this board has experienced.  Many
IVGID employees have left their employment as they
can't work under the current board and the treatment
they have received.  

The search for another GM needs to be left
to the new board.  

This has led to financial decisions of
hiring temporary consultants, which is substantially
more costly, or worse, hiring headhunters that
results in a larger loss of cash.  

This is a small community of less than
10,000 full-time residents.  This is not L.A. or San
Francisco, yet your current proposal of whether or
not to hire the consulting firm, Troon, to run the
community, then they have hiring authority.  We need
to be in charge of running or own community and
hiring our own GM.  

The outrageous cost of such a company is
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not advantageous to this community.  The latest
estimates have costs of this of more than $325,000
per year.  

Perhaps in a larger golf community such as
Palm Springs, this may be a welcome change, but to
our multi-service community, that includes skiing,
beaches, recreation, et cetera, this is not to our
advantage in any way, shape, or form.  They have no
experience in managing such entities.

I think this board needs to take a step
back and postpone any major decisions until the new
board takings over in January.  Saddling them with a
locked-in, expensive contract seems like exit
revenge instead of community well-being.

DR. RINER:  Thank you, Board.  My name is
Dr. Myles Riner, Incline Village resident for
many years.  

The proposal to outsource the management
of IVGID is predicated on the observations of a
flawed forensic audit report from RubinBrown.  It is
amazing to me that the auditor failed to interview
both Mr. Winquest, who was still on the payroll when
the audit was done, and Mr. Navazio, the
ex-financial director who offered several times to
inform the audit process.  
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In any case, it is now clear that despite

protestations to the contrary, Trustees Schmitz,
Dent, and Tulloch had been determined to outsource
management of the District and to find a rationale
for doing so.  Together, you have managing to
create, as Troon points out, an overwhelming loss of
historical perspective and knowledge, major gaps and
deficiencies in operating processes and controls,
and long periods of time to source, hire, and train
new people for the management positions.  This is
primarily your fault, and as you head out the door
in January, your legacy to this community.

I understand that you three trustees
believe that you need to hire a management company
to fulfill your demand to implement the 41
observations identified by RubinBrown and make the
GID run like a for-profit business.  The staff's
response to this audit demonstrates that they
recognize the need to address many of these issues,
through they rightly reject a few that were based on
flawed analysis.  

As Mr. Magee pointed out, 16 of these 41
observations have already been completely fixed, and
related controls put in place.  And the staff has
prioritized and is currently working on 18 more.
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Clearly the IVGID staff and management teams are
working hard and successfully to resolve these
issues.  Why not give them the chance to demonstrate
that despite the damage you have inflicted on them,
they can deliver under demands.  

Create a reasonable set of expectations
and milestones for these remaining issues through a
subcommittee of the Board and monitor their progress
over the next four months.  You may find that this
expensive management contract is entirely
unnecessary.

I would also point out that this proposed
contract with Troon establishes a performance goal
based on the profitability of the District.  Again,
I must point out that the GID is not a for-profit
business.  Apparently neither you nor Troon gets
this.

Thank you.
MR. MARSHALL:  My name is Allen Marshall.

I've been a resident here for 15 years.  I worked
for IVGID for nine of those.

This -- I look at Incline as a family,
and, I mean, every community member is a family
member.  And anyone that would be willing to give
the keys to this kingdom away to an independent
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organization that doesn't care about our family, I
would be appalled.  It would be like turning your
parents over to a nursing home that you knew nothing
about and just wanted to get rid of the
responsibilities.  

I feel like the Board has not taken the
responsibility to do their job.  I look at this as a
non-bid contract.  I know there's more than one
organization out there than Troon.  How can you just
turn over to an organization that runs golf courses
only without a bid situation.  

You interviewed three other people as town
managers.  Every board before this has found town
managers, kept this community surviving in a plus
situation monetarily, and you guys haven't been able
to do that with the last three selections.  I just
find this a dereliction of duty and I'm appalled.  

That's all I have to say.
MR. BRIGGS:  Thank you.  I'm Michael

Briggs.  I live at 582 Douglas Court.  I'm here to
speak about the Troon proposal.  

I'm a retired business executive.  I've
served as general counsel, VP of operations, and,
importantly, director of human resources.  I am
appalled by the proposal of Ms. Feore.  Why was it

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  26
done by an HR director rather than a general manager
and appropriate team members?

Hiring a management company for all IVGID
venues is a drastic change and inserts a layer of
responsibility, accountability, and costs on the
IVGID taxpayers.  If you're serious about study that
opportunity, there should be expanded public
hearings with lots of notice to the public so more
people can participate.  

Then, if the trustees proceed with a
management company, follow some best practices that
are not present in Ms. Feore's memo.  

First, define the scope and the parameters
and set the terms of the contract.  Don't rely on
the proposal of the contractor.

Second, obtain proposals from multiple
management firms, including local firms, possibly
forming a consortium.

Third, do not start negotiations with a
sole-source contractor for a cost-plus deal without
a good team representing us.  

Fourth, do not burden three incoming
trustees with a three-year contract.  It's ironic
the Troon proposal sayings they're going to bring
best practices to our community while they're taking
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advantage of the fact that we are not following best
practices in making that selection.

Thank you.
MR. NOVACK:  So, first of all, to the

Board, you are really doing your job investing all
the stuff you do, so that's good.  But regarding
this issue, we're really in the first inning of an
extra inning ballgame.  My god.  

As a past and present member of many
boards, I have to ask the following questions:  Have
you interviewed other management companies?  There's
at least 20-plus companies in Troon's space.  Do you
doctor RFPs?  If so, can you share them with the
community?  Is there a statute that requires bids?
If not, it would be prudent to get one.  Why the
proposed three-year contract versus shorter period?
And why such a bit buyout clause, what's the
advantage to the community?  

And regarding Troon and history of
management companies, I'm not here to disparage
them, but if you called Moorpark County Club to find
why they fired Troon on the 366th day of the recent
one-year contract.  I've interviewed a number of
people in the management company business, including
a former Troon director of golf, a current country
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club GM who worked for golf management companies for
20 years, a former Troon director of operations, and
a current GM who ad managed a resort had Troon
manage his golf property.  They all said the same
thing:  It's all about alignment and ownership.  

The agreement must be very specific
regarding operational objectives, capital
objectives, all balanced against customer
satisfaction, that way, got a balance.  

Remember management companies are
companies with their own bottom line.  When the
issues is who wins, the management company's going
to win by either cutting expenses, understaffing, or
cutting back on resources and maintenance.

Basically, when you hire a management
company, the Board gives up control, which begs the
question to the voters:  Do they want to give up
control of their community.  

Now some personal observations.  In the
past boards I worked on, we looked at management
companies.  It's a good practice to look at
management companies, but we couldn't get over the
fact that no matter how we structured the contract,
the management companies never had the same skin in
the game as the owners.  
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Another personal observation, 25 years ago

when Hyatt built the Resident's Club next to the
hotel, the two companies were under the same
corporate umbrella.  The Resident's Club has a
one-year contract with the hotel for services.  It
is still a one-year contract 25 years later.  So
companies in the same corporation have one-year
contracts.  

Lastly, there are a number published
articles explaining the long-term risks of contract
that board's create for long-term contracts, both
the risk to the board and personally for the board
members.  I recommend you read them.  Please do your
due diligence.  

Thank you for your service.  I pray you do
the right thing.

MS. GUT:  My name is Elise Gut, and I live
at 611 Fallen Leaf Way.  I'm not here to give
advice.  I'm here to speak as a very concerned
community member who has been here for 30 years.  

I will start by saying that wish, more
than you can possibly imagine, how much I'd like to
keep this positive.  However, with what the Board
majority of Sara, Matt, and Ray are threatening, it
is impossible.  I continue to be amazed at how you
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refuse to listen to the community in which you were
elected to serve.  You are serving no one except for
yourselves.  Your blatant abuse of power is
pathetic.  

While it's common decency to be respectful
of our trustees, I ask myself how can it possible be
when there's absolutely no respect for me as a
long-time community member, let alone roughly 10,000
others.

I am not sure how you can sleep at night
knowing what you're doing a so wrong, something that
many of the people who elected and trusted you do
not want, something that is so wrong for this
community, and that if you have one decent human
cell in your body, you know that that's true.  

You are willing to tie the hands of an
incoming Board of Trustees by issuing a three-year
contract.  That's nasty, it's selfish, it's evil.

By the way, I can't wait to hear where the
money is coming from to pay for this.  Please don't
embarrass yourselves or us by saying reserves, our
parcel owners who don't want this, the ones that are
going to end up paying for it.  

You couldn't find anything to work
alongside of you.  Do you think for a minute that
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you should consider why?  You bully the staff in
writing memorandums that aren't theirs.  You write
them.  You micromanage to infinity and beyond.  

Basically, you failed to do that you've
been elected to do, what your responsibilities are
as trustees of this district.  So you're going to
destroy what our founders put in place, which has
always been a very successful plan, so that you can
have your revenge.  So that you can feel powerful?
So that you can totally disrespect the majority of
residents with a show of:  We don't care what you
think?  You just want to see this village burn to
the ground before the two of you leave, and I just
can't understand why.  

Why did you purchase your home if you
don't like the amenities as they are?  How dare you
change what generations of families love about this
community.  Shame on you, Matt, Ray, and Sara.  Just
know when you're gone, which can't come soon enough,
we will resurrect what we love so much about this --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MS. HOLLAND:  My name is Catherine

Holland.  I've live on Pinecone Road, and I've been
a resident for 25 five years.  

I have five points that I'd like to make
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on the Troon proposal and outsourcing IVGID
operations.  

I personally have over 20 years of
executive experience with outsourcing, both as a
customer and as a supplier, on contracts from $20
million to over $1 billion.  This is has been in
multiple industries and governments around the
world, covering functional areas, including human
resources, information technology, accounting,
marketing, manufacturing, supply chain management,
utility infrastructure, and power plants just to
name a few areas.  

Outsourcing can work; however, if, and
only if, the supplier has experience in all of the
areas that are in scope, and if they have experience
in qualified staff already on their payroll.

Further, as a for-profit entity, the
supplier must make money, and this can only happen
in one of two ways:  Either they reduce the
outsources functions expensed by a minimum of 20 to
25 percent to meet their shareholders' expectations
or by increasing the cost of services they provide
to the customer.  Neither of those is likely to
happen.

It's a bit unclear if IVGID is required
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legally as a government organization per NRS 332.065
to competitively bid out such a potential contract.
However, given the size and scope of IVGID, no sane
management team would sole source such a contract.  

By the way, Ray, you road on a platform
that to competitively bid everywhere.  Where are you
now?  

It costs Troon a fair amount of money to
review IVGID and to put together a proposal, and I
feel fairly certain that they only did it under the
impression that we were serious about such
arrangement.  How did this come about without being
made public?  

I am a proponent of outsourcing when it
makes sense.  For IVGID, this is the case.  Do not
proceed, and the certainly lame duck trustees should
not commit the next board to such a deal.  Cease and
desist immediately.

Thank you.
MS. MILLER:  Good evening, trustees.
First of all, I'd like to say I wouldn't

be supportive of the Troon proposal that was
presented.  And I have a feeling you trustees
wouldn't either.  We had asked -- or you had asked
for the HR director to look at options for us since
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we've had a difficult time.  One of the options was
to find a management company.  Our HR director --
apparently people haven't read this, but she had
sought responses from several management companies
and Troon was the only one to respond.  And
according to what we've heard, the HR director was
the only one in communication with Troon.  

So this isn't the Board's proposal, this
is from Troon, this is the only one that came back.  

Anyway, moving on, IVGID's day of
reckoning has come.  The mismanagement and inability
to produce a clean ACFR will undoubtedly hamper if
not rule out our ability to obtain bonds at a
favorable rate.  We've seen a partial list of
deferred projects at the beaches and community
services that total $51 million, and add another ten
if staff's rough estimates for the new beach house
are accurate.  

Since the District realized upon facility
fees for maintenance and replacement, not just
operating losses, some other solution is necessary.
Regardless of how this came about, IVGID's current
recreational venues are unsustainable.  

And after a quick reading of the
$23,000-plus F and B report by Chris Sartains, I
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might need to reach out for this makeshift barf bag.
The consultant obviously didn't understand the
difference between a private club, his background,
and IVGID.  He doesn't understand that every dollar
of operating losses at F and B has to be made up by
the property owners.  Apparently, he's been
indoctrinated with this pervasive false philosophy
that costs don't matter here.  IVGID's overstepped
the limits of its powers of public recreation.
Bars, restaurants, catering, high-end golf shops are
businesses.  Those aren't public recreation
services.  

I believe IVGID took on far too much for a
public agency in a community of this size to operate
and maintain.  I think we've seen the numbers.  

People talk about keeping to the original
plan, but they don't realize that according to one
of IVGID's first trustees, the plan was that, except
for the beaches, amenities would be privately owned
and operated.  Although the ski area might be close
to be self-sufficient, it won't be in the near
future.  

As much as this community loves having all
these publicly owned and operated recreational
amenities, it's time to accept the reality:  If

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  36
IVGID's incapable of getting it's house in order,
someone else will.

MS. WELLS:  Kristie Wells, Incline Village
resident.

I'm here to address the proposal on
tonight's agenda to outsource the management of
IVGID.  A majority of this board, Trustees Schmitz,
Dent, and Tulloch, explicitly stated that
outsourcing management was not an intention.  Yet
here we are with a proposal to do just that.  

This abrupt shift not only undermines
public trust, but also suggest that this board is
admitting its inability to manage its one employee
that it has, the general manager.  This is clear
indication of failure on your part.  

The consulting firm being proposed is
Troon management, specializes in golf and food and
beverage.  However, they lack experience in critical
areas such as ski, parks and rec, governmental
admin, and public works, areas that are vital to the
successful management of IVGID.  This significant
gap in expertise is problematic, and sets a
concerning president for our district.

Furthermore, where is the funding for this
unbudgeted item coming from?  This is an essential
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question that remains unanswered.  

Additionally, the noncancelable contract
presented by this firm is a major red flag.  Have we
not learned the issues of General Manager Magee's
contract?  Committing to such an inflexible
agreement could hamstring the District and tie the
hands of future leadership.  A decision of this
magnitude should not be rushed or made without
extensive community outreach and discussion.  

The prudent course of action would be to
assign an internal interim general manager until a
more permanent and well considered solution is
determined by the board seated in January.  

Another item I'd like to address is the
letter submitted by the senior staff following the
release of the RubinBrown audit.  The board majority
has actively undermined the reputation of our
dedicated staff and fosters distrust within the
District.  This was amplified by launching yet
another audit while the finance department was in
the middle of addressing recommendations made by
Moss Adams.  

The most frustrating part of this is of
the 41 observations that RubinBrown made, many where
similar to Moss Adams, and 16 of them have already
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been completely fixed, per the words of General
Manager Magee on July 31st.

Staff is actively working on 18 other
items, and others will be addressed as necessary.
It's disappointing that Magee allowed this report to
released while he was on vacation without providing
an update to the Board or to the community, leaving
staff vulnerable to criticism and ridicule for a
period of three weeks.  

The staff letter also revealed that many
oft he observations were factually incorrect, ed
without merit, or were written without the
involvement of consultation form key knowledgable
staff.  

This board and RubinBrown's failure to
communicate crucial information to staff during this
process has created an environment of mistrust and
confusion.  The transparency demanded from staff is
not reciprocated by this board, undermining the
principles of good governance.

December 31st cannot come soon enough.  It
is imperative to install real leadership on this
Board of Trustees.  The new board must focus on
constructive, community-centered governance to help
this district move forward.  I just hope it won't be
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too late to reverse the destructive efforts of
Schmitz, Dent, and Tulloch who have sought to
dismantle our GID, drive discontent, and destabilize
our financial footing.

Thank you.
MR. KATZ:  Good evening.  Aaron Katz,

Incline Village.  I have several written statements
I've given to Heidi in the hallway I asked to be
included in the minutes of this meeting.  

I don't have much to say about this Troon
contract, except I hope the people here read this
staff memo, because there's something else looming
out there who is worse than Troon, and his name is
Bill Horn.  He used to be a general manager here,
and I guess he wants to come back and inflict
everything wrong on us again he did before.  So when
you consider, please don't consider Bill Horn.

I'm going to talk about the EXL contract.
I, for one, have had it with our market manager, his
misguided views about media advertising, and he's in
bed, not literally, figuratively, with Wendy Hummer
of EXL Media.  

He says his department doesn't have the
bandwidth to do his own media purchases.  Would that
be because he spends his time as a publisher of a
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magazine?  If he did his damn job, he would be able
to do, but he can't.  And how does he measure
success of advertising by internet clicks and social
media impressions?  That there's no evidence that
his advertising has general $1 of additional revenue
we wouldn't have general if it were not for the
advertising.  

He was told not to waste money on
billboard advertising, and yet he went ahead and did
it on Highway 80.  It's this absolutely disgusting.
And then he has the gall to put in his memo that we
generated over a million impressions.  Well, how do
you get an impression of somebody maybe looking or
maybe not looking at a billboard?  It's absolutely
garbage.  It's costing us $255,000, a waste.  End
it.  

Furthermore, let the new board deal with
it.  Maybe they think advertising is good, but don't
lock us in.

Now, finally, there's a history with Wendy
Hummer, I brought it out in my email to you, and
it's not a good history.  It didn't work out well
many years ago when I first came to Incline.  The
reason she lost the contract had nothing to do with
us trying to go out for bid to get an alternative.
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She was going things with our marketing manager at
the time.  And I vowed at that point never, never,
never deal with that woman again on anything with
the public.  And now she's back in the fold because
she's buddies with Paul Raymoore.  I ask that you
not give her another contract.  

Thank you.
MR. CARS:  Bills Cars, full-time resident

since 2020.
The proposal for Troon contract is

outrageous.  It's a desperate measure that's not
even in the budget.  This board, specifically
Trustees Schmitz, Dent, and Tulloch, has spent huge
sums of money to hire a financial talent, Bobby
Magee, at elevated cost, then attempted to convert
Mr. Magee's contract to a general manager at even a
higher cost, when other GM applicants.  All the
while, chasing senior staff away from the IVGID
umbrella through excessive micromanagement and
denying it the whole time.

The reason IVGID cannot hire is that our
trustees's reputation for leadership is abysmal.
People do not want to work here.  The new solution
is not a contract with an outside firm who will then
hire and manage the GM.  That's insane.
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It is so obviously your plan is to force

financial hardship on the residents then to walk
away from the problem.  Trustees Dent and Schmitz
will time out in 2024.  Please try to leave a viable
senior staff and not a scorched earth legacy.

For Trustee Tulloch, the recall dogs are
barking, but you can also have time to leave with
positive changes.  The better recovery plan is to
manage with existing staff, selecting an existing
employee to be an acting GM, and to wait for the new
leadership to direct the path.  Shore up the
financial team, get the financial and IT controls in
place.  Those are valued areas that you can affect
positive change right now.  I implore you to do so.

MS. CARS:  Linda Cars. 
I'm going to go off my presentation for a

few minutes because I do not believe for one second
that Erin Feore was behind the Troon.  It speaks of
Sara and Ray.  I don't think Erin did that without
somebody telling her to present.  

I assume Troon will be the hot topic
tonight, which it was, and I want to touch on a
couple of other topics for new IVGID community
members.  

For 19 months, the Board majority,
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Tulloch, Schmitz, and Dent, spent hundreds of
thousands of dollars on consultants which have not
improved the benefits or to the added to the
well-being.  To date, no fraud has been found that
Trustee Schmitz was so concerned about.

Trustee Schmitz turned down a $25 million
donation from the Duffield Foundation because she
did not agree with the scope of the project for the
Recreation Center.  These funds were needed as this
was a huge loss, huge loss to the community.  Due to
micromanagement, Trustee Schmitz and Tulloch forced
out all senior management except for one, resulting
in the loss of years of historic knowledge and good
employees.  

Troon is not needed right now.  This
current lame duck board should be respectful to the
community.  A two-year contract is outrages.  You're
trying to stick IVGID with an obligation outside of
budget and unnecessary.  Ms. Herron is the only
person with the knowledge and background to assume
the GM job on a temporary basis.  

Trustees Tulloch, Schmitz, and Dent, stop
what feels like you vindictiveness against Ms.
Herron.  Her look in the mirror, try to leave a
positive legacy.  Work towards solutions over the
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next six months, not spending money we do not have.
Stop assuming staff are incompetent, stop meddling,
set reasonable standards for staff to follow, step
out of the way and let them work.  Do not put extra
layers of management on top of hard-working staff.  

You just hired a new director of Parks and
rec.  Give her time to work her job.  She's highly
experienced.  She applied for the GM job, let her
assume that temporarily if you cannot interview
Ms. Herron for the job.  

Troon does not have the expertise to
manage a GID such as ours.  You know that.  They are
golf and hospitality specialists.  

What is the end game of the three trustees
with two leaving in a few months?  The community
wants the answers.  

If you are considering Trustee Tulloch as
a candidate for interim GM, I suggest you cancel
this consideration, based on how he speaks down to
staff and treats them.  Trustee Tulloch has not
followed the platform he ran on.  Quote, adoption of
competitive bidding prices for all expenditures over
$10,000.

Trustees, how can you even consider this
contract without other bids?  How can you consider

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 74 of 271



  45
this contract without 30-, 60-, or 90-day
cancellation clauses?  

There are so many internal solutions that
are workable and that will not increase costs.  You
complain each board meeting about not having money,
this Troon contract is nonsensical and unbudgeted.

MR. VALDEZ:  My name is Jim Valdez, and I
moved to Incline 40 years this month.  I lived in
Steamboat Springs for seven years, and the reason I
moved to Incline Village was because of the small
town atmosphere and the wonderful amenities it
offered for the residents.  

Trustees work to improve the District to
include recreation and utilities dissention from
residents overall.  Sara, since you have been a
trustee, you and the other two have cost residents a
$26 million donation, which would have improved the
rec department for everyone, especially the
children, while driving down morale of employees and
residents.  You've deprived employees living outside
the District of beach access and dove down our punch
passes to $92, which are cost the District around
$400 in lost revenue from each resident.  

These are a few things the Board has done
without consideration or input from the community,
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and I could go on.  

When you and Matthew Dent were going to be
recalled, it was ironic that 1,801 signatures or
petitions were needed, and even though there were
over 2,300, 500 or so got rejected causing you not
to be recalled.  But when you realized you were not
going to get voted in for another term, it was time
to get out of Incline.  I wondered many times and
I've talked to many friends wondering what you and
the other two were going to come up with as a
farewell F Incline Village, and it looks like the
Troon proposal is it.  

Good riddance, wherever you're going on,
and if I can do anything to help you move out
sooner, let me know.

MR. JANSEN:  Hello.  My name is John
Jansen.  I live on Alpine View Drive.  

I'm an emphatic no on the contracting out
the management of IVGID to the Troon company.  The
proposal to contract out the management of IVGID to
a for-profit company is monumental change to the
structure of this community.  

This board is rushing into making this
decision out sufficient public input.  Why are you
rushing this process?  How can you even consider
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contracting out all of the management of IVGID to a
golf management company?  This company has no
experience in managing ski resorts or a public
utility system.  Your rationale for doing this makes
no sense.

By pursuing this process, the majority on
this board have failed in their fiduciary
responsibilities to the citizens of Incline Village.
You have proven to be incapable of overseeing the
management of IVGID.  

Since the lame duck majority on this board
is derelict in their pensilities of stewards of our
assets, to most prudent approach and the one that
makes the most sense would be to wait six months and
have newly elected board members make this decision.
They will have the most current mandate from what
the voters in this town think of this proposal.  

Using the slipshod, rushed, backroom deal,
no-bid process to make a change of this magnitude at
this time would be the most grotesque display to
date of the many bad faith dealings that the
majority of this board has shown to the citizens of
our community over the past few years.  

I demand you reject this Troon proposal
and stop the destruction of our community.
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MR. MIKE:  Hi.  Thanks for letting me

talk.  Like of many of those here, I've never spoken
to you all before, but I couldn't sit and watch this
happen.  

My wife and I have lived here since 2012.
We bought our home here in large part because of the
private beaches, golf, ski, and recreational
facilities.  These are community amenities that, as
far as I understand, we actually own.  Us.

Today, the trustees are considering
outsourcing management of some or maybe all of these
community amenities.  I am solidly opposed to this
plan, and I'd like to share my concerns.  The gist
of it is that I think there is a fundamental and
irresolvable conflict of interest between that
residents' interest and those of any outside
management company.  

The first issue is the incentive
structure.  Once the contract is signed, the
incentive structure of Troon cannot be made to align
with our interests.  Their motivation will be to do
whatever they need to do to renew their contract.
And if there's a bonus available to them, they will
do whatever they need to do to achieve a hundred
percent of that.  Top line revenue and expense
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management will undoubtedly be a huge part of that
metric.  

I question how something soft, like
resident satisfaction or access to the amenities,
could ever rate against a hard metric like operating
profit.  And as an outsourcer, they will demand a
hard metric, some that they can be measured against.
I know.  I used to be in the outsourcing business.

Second fundamental issue is that the
general manager would not report to the Board of
Trustees anymore, but we would pay their salary.  So
that means that the very person charged with running
things day to day won't even report to the Board of
Trustees.  To me, it's is a showstopper, you don't
even have to go any farther.  

The third issue, I think I've touched on
relating to the incentive structure, the amenities
would inevitably become a profit center, with higher
fees overall and probably a shift away from use by
the residents to non-residents.  Troon management is
well known for its Troon Card, they advertise access
to all kinds of golf courses.  Good case in point --
don't know if you all know this -- if a single
person tries to get access to Troon North, they
won't even take a tee time in the morning by a
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single person.  You have to find another threesome
to join, you're on your own.  They will only take a
foursome.  

We've got a great golf course here.  And
although you might not be golfers, you might not
care, these amenities add value to our properties,
and if we destroy that value, it is really going to
hurt us as property owners.  

Finally, and this may be a long shot, but
I don't want to see this as a nose of the camel at
the end of the tent of eventually selling these
community amenities.  These amenities are ours, I
want them to remain in the community, and I would
hate to see Troon ganging up with a big bond company
that taking this thing private.  

The trustees, you're playing with fire,
and I ask you to please go slow and note make a
decision on this.

MS. RICHARDS:  Good evening, board
members.  My name is Sandra Richards, and I live on
Ski Way.  I've been a member of this community since
1978.

I want to thank Ronnie for her work and
dedication in this community.  There are people in
this town you might not even know who dearly respect
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you and dearly love you.  Somebody else, Scott, we
lost, and we're going to miss you so much, Ronnie.

The brain trust in this room is so awesome
that I'm not going to be redundant.  But I -- with
the exception of maybe three speakers, I give a
standing ovation to what has been said here.

What I can add to what has not been said
was yesterday, I made a phone call to Alexsis Hill.
She is a Washoe County commissioner.  When I told
her that an outside group may come in at an expense
of about $300,000 a year over three years, her voice
raised, this woman raised her voice on the phone and
said to me, "There is no money."  I spoke a little
bit more about what I had heard, she raised her
voice one more and said, "There is no money."  And
then she said, "Well, there would be money if they
would augment the budget."  

Augment a budget?  I thought we were under
a freeze because of this audit and all the things
that you guys are finding out about ridiculous
over-costs, things like, that from previous years.

Here's what she did say -- and this is a
note for all of us -- she said, "If any contract is
to be made, it's only to be made for 30 days."  And
the reason she said that 30 days is because that's
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what all the rest of Washoe County does in their
contracts, so it is the norm in Washoe County to
give a 30-day window to make sure you're doing the
right thing.  I'm sure this consulting company won't
go for 30 days.

Thank you.
MS. JEZYCKI:  Good evening.  Michelle

Jezyski, Incline resident and candidate for IVGID
trustee.

Before beginning my comments on the agenda
topic of the evening, I want to pay respect to a
gentleman who has recently passed.  Dominic Spallone
was not only a local business owner, but he was an
instrumental IVGID board member and my childhood
neighbor.  He ran for IVGID with the slogan:  No
baloney with Spallone.

Speaking of which, the proposal, the Troon
proposal to manage our village is more than
polarizing, it is simply wrong.  Why is it that you,
as a board, are so keen to outsource your own duties
in managing your one employee and asking us to pay
twice, again, hiring consultants for our
consultants.  And for what?  As we've seen with
previous contracts, why should we allow board
members another opportunity to meddle in the
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direction, scope, outcome, recommendations, and even
findings of contracts to fit their narrative.  This
is absurd.  We heard discussions about transparency,
yet we continue to operate in an antithetical
manner.  

On one hand, we have graphs and
reiterations of the sky is falling, payroll far
exceeds our budget, et cetera, et cetera.  How,
then, can you begin to entertain a three-year, $1
million-plus proposal by a consulting firm who has
no experience with what our original ordinance
charges IVGID with managing?  That being Public
Works.  Additionally, from which budget will this be
drawn?  

This makes no sense, and it is actually
reckless business behavior.

To HR director Feore's defense, it appears
she may be following the guidance of the Board.
Does she not take direction from the GM, the only
employee the Board supervises?  

If the direction was given by the GM, it's
standard procedure for HR to issue an RFP.  This is
the only way to ensure a completely transparent and
fair process.  The fact that this is not how this is
being handled does nothing but build further
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suspicion and distrust, as does the pace at which
some of the Board are trying to ram this through.  

Better yet, why not use one of our
prepaid, often predetermined, FlashVote surveys that
the Board has purchased to ask the community which
direction they would like to see of filling of the
GM position, and how they would like to see our
village managed.  

After all, the Board serves the community,
and Incline is rich, as we've heard tonight, with
business experience, expertise, and ideas.  

Additionally, I draw your attention to the
NRS 318.098, assistance from -- can you please turn
that off?  Assistance to district from county
officers.  Why not enlist the assistance in this
management effort through the county as a resource?
This way, we only pay for services with no upcharge
or markups, and a far more fiscally responsible
option.  

The agenda item is not ready for prime
time, there's still much work to be done.  If you
insist on a management company doing your work and
the GM's work, starting with casting a proper net,
would be RFP, and not indulging hand-picked
board-led or not consulting firms.  
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I you urge to listen to your community,

take a break for station identification and complete
necessary and professional processes.

I have mentioned before, given we will
inevitably have a new board voted in in less than
three months, please appoint an interim GM through
the end of the year.  Do the proper research, lay
the groundwork, and let the new board lock our
community into the next leadership hire.

In the vein of collaborative and community
spirit, you have the chance to do the right --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MR. HOMAN:  Mick Homan, Incline resident

and candidate for IVGID trustees.  
I strongly urge the trustees to reject the

proposal to hire Troon or another consultant to
manage the district.  I believe this would be a
tremendous mistake for IVGID, its residents, and
staff.

The proposal has many red flags.  It adds
an unnecessary layer of management.  We'd then Troon
as a management company, then Troon would hire the
GM.  The GM wouldn't even work for IVGID; they'd
work for Troon.  We would have redundant management
and related costs.  We pay Troon a management fee of
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around $325,000, plus we'd directly reimburse Troon
for a hundred percent of the cots of the GM they
hire to manage the District.  

To make matters worse, they're proposing a
three-year contract, no cancellation provisions in
years one and two, and only limbed ability to cancel
in year three.  Is that even legal?  

What's even more troubling is that Troon
has virtually no experience dealing with anything
other than traditional golf and related -- club
related recreational amenities.  That's what they
are known for and that's what they promos.  And the
reputation in that area is the mixed.  

They have no experience in ski operations,
no experience in utilities or governmental
operations.  Where will they get that experience?
They will get trained by IVGID staff and hire
externally for a GM.  

In addition to managing the day-to-day
operations of the District, Troon would be
responsible for formulating annual operating plans
and budgets along with the five-year plans.  Foolish
me.  I thought the most important duty of the Board
was to hire and manage the GM, and then work with
the GM to formulate the District's short- and
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long-term operating and strategic plans.  

So hiring Troon or any other company of
this type of arrangement would be a complete
abdication and outsourcing of the Board's core
responsibility.  We have to ask ourselves:  Why?
Chair Schmitz gave us a clue in a recent meeting.
She stated she couldn't see how any one individual
could possibly be capable of fixing our issues and
managing the District.  I strongly disagree.

Despite what she thinks, this is not that
complicated.  We have issues.  And if we're being
totally honest, many of those issues are
self-inflicted.

Under this board majority, we've lost
unprecedented levels of leadership, staff, and
institutional knowledge.  Anybody that watches the
dysfunctionality at board meetings understands why
current leadership is virtually paralyzed.  The
Board gives conflicting direction and are wasting
effort and resources constantly looking backwards
trying to place blame rather than focusing on
solutions.

Each of our issues is solvable.  We don't
need to outsource leadership to do that.  We need to
hire a qualified leader, help them build out their
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leadership team, and then fill out the appropriate
org design.  

If this board is incapable of doing that,
then simply get out of the way.  Don't pursue an
obvious act of desperation that prevents the next
board from picking up the pieces and acting in the
long-term best interest of IVGID, its residents, and
staff.  Myself and other candidates are more than up
to the task.

Thank you.
MS. USINGER:  Caroline Usinger from

Jackpine in Incline Village, lived here since 1974.  
I came here today to share a positive new

project with the Incline Education Fund called,
"Family Ties."  It's a lending library of games and
projects for kids.  But while sitting here, I
realized that I have to put aside all of that,
because the first thing is is this is a repetition
of what happened with Indra a year ago.  

And I was involved with many, many board
meetings from that day on, and the consistent
reality of every single board meeting was that you
guys, meaning the three, Dent and Tulloch and our
dear chairman, refuse to listen to anybody.  And,
therefore, regarding -- they -- nothing mattered
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nothing.  Absolutely nothing.  It was as if we were
in another world.  So I know, unfortunately, or I
suspect, unfortunately, that you're going to ignore
all of these comments today like you ignored the
ones with Indra.  

And so I'm talking today, for a minute, to
the community at large.

I picked up over 200,000 pieces of trash
in the Tahoe basin because I care about Lake Tahoe.
I care about the bikers, whose rides are ruined when
they see trash.  I care about plastic pollution and
it getting into the lake.  I care that people
visiting Tahoe see it's glory and not it's trash.
But most of all, I care that the people who live
here can enjoy Tahoe without focusing on the bad
things that a few people have done to ruin it.  

Unfortunately, the Sheriff's Department
didn't share my caring and gave me tickets, and I'm
not picking up trash anymore.  So I'm focusing my
caring on kids, but I'll explain that at a different
time.  

Just a few years ago, we had an IVGID
staff that cared about our community.  They let the
kids' golf team practice golf.  Kids learned water
safety.  If you had a special need, you could always
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go to the IVGID staff for a request for the
community and receive some kind of help.  Indra
worked with the community, and the Duffield Boys and
Girls Club was founded.  And the Duffield Foundation
was a major force in improving this community.  

This board has ruined this.  You pushed
out a caring staff only to replace it with auditors
and pencil pushers and consultants who live far away
from here.  You pushed out the Duffield Foundation's
offer to improve the Rec Center.  

But that isn't enough.  Now you're giving
control over the entire community to an outside
corporation.  Let's see, we've recently tried that
with the prison system, giving control to the
corporations, and that turned out to be a
disastrous, expensive disastrous experience.

MS. LAYLOR:  My name is Angie Laylor, I'm
an Incline Village resident and retired CHRO for a
couple of fortune 100 companies.

The proposal to outsource management
oversight of IVGID to Troon makes no sense.  Why
would you lock the District up for a three-year
arrangement that offers questionable value, above
and beyond what hiring what our own GM would do, but
most certainly adds material cost to the already
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fiscally challenged district?  

The goals and interests of Troon do not
and will not align to those of the residents and
property owners of Incline Village.  It's just a bad
idea.

It's disappointing that we find ourselves
in the position we are today, with rampant turnover,
stressed financials, overtaxed staff who are
constantly chasing their tails to try and satisfy
the latest whim, ill-conceived idea, or personal
vendetta of certain trustees, and in need again of a
new GM to lead the district.  

Watching the board majority making bad
decision after bad over the past few years has been
like watching a slow motion train wreck.  But it's
that leadership that got us where we are.  Simply
put, you've failed and in a colossal way.

Please don't make matters worse on your
way out.  Do not tie the District's and the new
board's hands in such a way that will cause more
turmoil and material costs to dismantle.  Instead,
focus your energy on finding an interim GM to keep
the trains on the track until a more permanent hire
can be made.  

The GM role for Incline Village should be
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a prime and highly sought-after career opportunity
in the market.  With our amenities, location, and
quality of life, we should be able to attract a
candidate slate that is not only plentiful but
strong and well experienced.  

Let's be candid, however, that is never
going to happen while this board majority reigns.
No one in their right minds would want to work under
these conditions with this vitreal, interference,
and micromanagement.  

Troon or any organization like them is not
the answer for IVGID, particularly not now, when we
are in a state of transition.  In fact, it's such an
illogical path to consider that it forces me to
question:  What could be possibly be behind it?

Honestly, the only conclusion that I can
reach is that it is a vindictive exit maneuver by
one or two board members who are bitter with the
community that they couldn't get behind them.  I
think they call that "scorched earth."

It's time to contemplate your motives,
check yourselves, and do the right thing for the
residents of this community.

Thank you.
MR. HITTNER:  My name is Joe Hittner, 1401
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Tirol, over 50 years in Tahoe.

Was out golfing today.  It was fantastic.
I heard that we were outsourcing to Troon, and it
blew my mind that we're doing this again, the
dismantling of the community just continues and it's
a sad thing.

Many of these folks did more research than
you all apparently did in looking at the Troon
contracts, looking at what that cost would be to us
as a community, and have no idea how Troon is run
elsewhere.  They are a corporation, publicly traded,
others have said this.  They are a for-profit
entity, they're going to get those profits however
they deem fit at the cost of services for our
community.  If you've been on their courses, they're
not as pristine as ours.  They're great.  I've
played a bunch of them.  I'm actually a Troon
member, but I would not choose them over our own.  

Our staff has the knowledge and
understanding of how to run these things.  God bless
them if they show up here and think how they can
winterize the golf course, let alone run a ski
resort.  Forget that.  They know nothing about this.

It's upsetting to me.  And as others have
called out, I wish you'd rethink what this.  If this
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is your exit plan to leave -- love the scorched
earth reference, because that's what it is.  

Everything that you guys have done to
dismantle this community, dismantle our community
has hurt us and it's not for the betterment.

And I will leave on a positive note:
Thank you for not running again.  Super happy.

MS. COPPERUD:  Hello.  My name's Joann
Copperud.  I've owned a home in Incline since 1989.
I've only been a full-time resident here and voter
for two years.  

I have a graduate degree in public
administration, so I like to think I have some
expertise in the public arena, although I know
expertise is not popular in certain political
circles these days.  Nonetheless, I have a lot.  

I spent my career in both the public
sector and as the managing principal of an
environmental regulatory compliance consulting firm.
By far the majority of my clients were state, local,
federal, and special district clients in the public
works department.  I cannot stress enough what a
special culture that is.  It's not a culture like
any other.  Although I am not a professional
engineer, you got to know and you got to like
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engineers that get a long with the people in that
world.  I seriously doubt that Troon can bring
anybody to the table who understands that
engineering world.

This is a huge, huge piece of what are
issues here in Incline.  And while -- right now, I
would say that the pros for Troon are batting about
.001 percent, I doubt that we are going to change
your minds, but at least we get to get it off our
chest.

The other thing I'd like the bring up is
the issue of unionization.  We know that our Public
Works department is unionized.  I would put any
amount of money, not a gambler but I might be in
this case, on the fact that if Troon comes in, you
will see our administrative staff unionized.  Within
two years, this will be a union employment
situation.  I think that that would be not to the
benefit of the community, however, at this rate, it
might be to the benefit of our staff, it might help
improve our ability to recruit and retain employees.
Again, those of you who are departing, we would like
to have you think of that as part of your legacy.

Thank you very much.
MR. ATTEBERRY:  I'm Thomas Atteberry.  I
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live at 824 Tyner Way.  Moved in at Incline in 2005.  

I'm a retired partner the an investment
management firm.  I spent 40 years analyzing and
researching public company's debt and equity.  I
usually spent time away from the financial
statements to look at the board members and
management and see how they acted, what they did,
and why.  

I was a fiduciary.  I was responsible for
$14 billion.  It was not money; it was somebody
else's money.  And my responsibility was to act as a
prudent man, is what the rule was.  

When I listened to everyone and what they
said, the few things that I've read, I am
disheartened by the fact that this board, to a
person, has not acted in a fiduciary responsibility
and hasn't acted in the best interest of its
clients, which are these people back here and
everybody that lives up here.  And I come to that
conclusion because you didn't follow policies and
procedures, you didn't investigate, you didn't
analyze, and you didn't research to come to your
decision.  That, I find appalling, because I'm
pretty darn sure that each and every one of you is a
very bright person.  You're not dumb, not criminals,
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not evil, you're none of those things.  I just fail
to understand:  How could you miss this?  

You may find yourselves in more difficult
situations, personally, if you move forward and
somebody decides to go you did act in an imprudent
manner.  To me your prudence at this point is you're
in a difficult spot, you might be best to go, you
know, I think I'm just lay this to the next board,
give them the information I have, and let them make
the decision.  It may be in your best long-term
financial and personal interest, because you've
gotten yourselves into a very difficult situation.

Good luck.
MS. HUSSONG-JOHNSON:  Good evening,

trustees and staff.  I appreciate the opportunity
for public comment.  For the record, my name is
Sarah Hussong-Johnson, 785 Mays Boulevard.  I'm a
property owner and I've lived in Incline, full time,
for over ten years.  

I'm a working professional civil engineer
with over 25 years of experience in public works
infrastructure.  And finally, I'm a member of the
IVGID Capital Investment Committee.  

My comment today is focused on agenda item
G 1, which recommends that Board of Trustees engage
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a golf course management company, Troon, for a
three-year agreement to recruit and hire a general
manager to oversee the operations of the District.  

I agree with all the public comment
focused on the generic, sole source, and
inappropriate nature of Troon's proposal, which has
been clearly articulated this evening.  

My comments are focused on the significant
services of the District that are not related to
recreation:  Our essential services of producing
clean water for drinking and fire protection, and
for the collection and treatment of sewage.  

Incline Village General Improvement
District was established in 1961 to provide water,
sewer, trash, and recreation services to our
community.  IVGID owns and operates a robust public
utilities system.  To be clear what we're
discussing, I'd like to give some examples of what
this system some comprises.

An 8.5 million gallon per day water
treatment, a 2 million gallon per day sewage
treatment plant, 13 water pump stations, 20 sewer
pump stations, 13 water tanks with over 7 million
gallons of storage, 100 miles of water lines, 850
fire hydrants.  I could go on.  
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A general manager responsible for

operating and maintaining a public utility requires
experience, knowledge, and careful attention to the
long-term planning, maintenance, and reinvestment in
public infrastructure.  This is not a job to be
outsourced, let alone for a for-profit management
company.  

The current board should not obligate the
future board or our community to a management
structure that is not desired by the community you
represent.  I respectfully request that you listen
to your constituents and leave future management
decisions to the newly elected Board of Trustees.

Thank you for your time and your
consideration.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do we callers online,
public comment?  

MR. BELOTE:  We do, Chair.
MR. LIVELY:  Good evening, trustees.

Thank you for taking my call.  I am David Lively.  I
live on Wedge Court.

I largely echo all of the comments made
this evening, and so I will truncate some of the
ones that I've intended to talk about.  But it's
clear to me that the human resources director exceed
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what she was asked to do, and that was find a new
interim manager to aid in the transition until the
new board was selected this year.  

The decision to seek outside management
could be made only after significant public meetings
and input to engage the residents' taste for this
type of massive structural change in the structure
of IVGID.  

Submitted proposals overemphasize
amenities and ignore the significant infrastructure
and financial responsibilities of management, Troon
has no experience on any of these important issues. 
They also lack any description of what amenities
will actually be managed by Troon or what financial
goals are being contemplating.  

Finally, the decision on these issues
should not be made by this board.  To call you a
lame duck is a little insulting, but it's true.
Many of you will not be here after November
elections, and this should be left to the incoming
Board of Trustees who will be around to deal with
the decisions made on this issue.

Leave -- appoint an interim GM until the
new Board of Trustees is installed at the beginning
of 2025 five .
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Thank you.
MR. NOLET:  Chris Nolet, full-time

resident, former Audit Committee chair through
February of '24.  

I'm going to reiterate a few comments from
last week, and then address a few of the comments
made tonight.  

The RubinBrown report did not define
fraud, therefore, I'm at a complete loss to
understand how they could say they didn't see any.
As I said last week and as I said many times
last year, as did Bobby Magee, Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 99, consideration of fraud in a
financial statement audit, there are multiple,
clearcut findings of financial reporting fraud in
the RubinBrown report.  Anything conclusion to the
contrary is simply naive.  

To answer questions in the public domain,
the $7 million of out-of-balance circumstance
between the general ledger and our main operating
bank account at June 30th of 2023, was a finding on
page 14 in the RubinBrown report.  You can find it
there.

Next, the senior team response to the
RubinBrown report, without input from the general
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manager who is their boss, really screams of lack of
any intellectual integrity.  After months of being
asked these questions by RubinBrown professionals,
how could they possibly be surprised the findings.
Please.

I've got to say this, Sarah Schmitz, I
told you directly in February of 2024, promoting
Magee to GM would result in both him and Cripps
bailing.  I'm sorry to say, here we are.  That said,
Troon is not the solution.  Catherine Holland, Keith
McKinnon, Sara Johnson, Mick Homan, and many others
have been very enlightening tonight with their
recommendations and they observations.

Engaging Troon would be a new race to a
new bottom for IVGID that we can't afford
operationally or the expense.

Thank you.
MS. KNAAK:  Hi.  Yolanda Knaak, Incline

Village resident.
I just wanted to, first, say that I agree

that Troon is not the answer.  I don't agree with
Horn either.  I think we should just continue to
look for someone that would be able to do a good
job.  

I do want to mention the meeting tomorrow.
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Before I go into that, I do want that say that, you
know, I want to thank, actually, Dent, Schmitz, and
Tulloch for voting in favor of the forensic audit.
I'm hoping that people will understand that the
audit was maybe understated, that I think things are
even worse than what they came up with.  And now
that it's all out in the open, we can fix it,
because that's the goal.  The goal is to fix it, not
just slam three people that voted in favor of it.
I'm curious as to why Michaela Tonking and David
Noble did not vote in favor of it.  

But, anyway, I do want to mention the
meeting tomorrow, which is the Committee on Local
Government.  If you look at the agenda for tomorrow,
IVGID forensic audit is -- it's -- I thought had it
sitting right there.  But, anyway, it's on the
agenda for tomorrow.  I believe it will be -- and it
starts at 9:30, and it is in Reno.  You can watch it
by Zoom.  The address is 4600 6th Street, building
L, room 235.  I want everyone to aware of that and
at least watch it on Zoom.  I think it's a really
important meeting.  Yeah, it's the IVGID forensic
audit, 4 B on the agenda.  

Thank you so much.
MR. MILLER:  Good evening.  Charlie
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Miller, over 10-year resident, former IVGID
employee.  I was with the Public Works department.  

I'm not sure at all that I could state to
eloquently my opinions as everybody that has talked
tonight.  So many former CFOs, public employees.
Ronnie Rector, happy to hear you.  

The turnover of the senior team and the
institutional knowledge is directly related to this
board majority and some of these public, but they're
only a small minority.  

I'm very proud of this community for
showing up, representing, speaking your minds
professionally, not insulting, but informed.  That
makes me very proud.

Senior staff, I'm proud of them for
writing their rebuttal to the audit, stepping up to
that.  They've done a lot of great work.  Nobody's
perfect, but we are all trying to do great work.
Very proud of that.  

I want to echo everything that the members
of the public have said today.  These board members
that are leaving, it's completely irresponsible for
them to hire Troon that has no experience in public
works and managing this job.  You're giving them a
résumé that they don't deserve right now.  Golf
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course is fine, but we are so much more than that.

You're going to hamstring us into
two years paying probably over half a million.  That
money should have gone into the Incline Beach House.
Matt Dent was part of that committee, and then they
pulled back because it was too much.  Well, that
$2.5-million building would have been gorgeous and
is now probably 6 or 7.  

I encourage the Board to step back, let
the new board come in next year and make decisions
for the community.

Thank you very much.
MS. WHETSTONE:  Hi.  My name is Lynn

Whetstone.  I live on Apollo Way.  I have been an
homeowner in Incline Village for 35 years and a
full-time resident for 23 years.  

I was previously a top executive in a
number of state departments in the State of
California, and I have a masters in public
administration.  

I want to echo many of the comments that
were already made.  I don't even know why we're
considering the Troon proposal.

The issue at hand should be:  How do we
fill in -- how does the Board find an interim
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manager or acting general manager to fill in the
time until a new board can make a reasoned and
well-thought-out effort to hire a new general
manager?  

And if there is someone from within the
IVGID staff who can do that, I from personal
experience that having an active manager from within
who sees this working for IVGID as their career,
they are going to be more dedicated to it that
somebody coming from outside, particularly since
we're talking about a short term.  

I don't know the new staff, so I don't
know if there really -- who there is who is
available.

The other comment I did want to reiterate
that other people made is that the micromanagement
by this board ahs resulted in departure of a number
of really excellent top management staff and Indra,
the earlier general manager.  

And I really want to speak to those who
are running for the board, please change that,
because that is what has really led to all the
problems we're seeing now.  

I have told one of the current board
members that for four years, I worked as a division
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chief in a department that had a five-member board
that met twice a month, I never had direct contact
with a board member except at board meetings.  I
just find it appalling that the Board continues to
set up more and more committees between involving
board and staff.  That's not the way to go.  

Thank you for listening to me, and I hope
you will make the right decision.  Bye.

MR. QUINN:  Hello.  My name is Bob Quinn,
and I reside at 971 (inaudible) Boulevard, and been
a proud member of this community sin 2000.

Since that time, I have felt privileged to
use and enjoy our many outstanding amenities,
including our wonderful beaches, the Recreation
Center, Diamond Peak ski area, and last but not
least our two beautiful and challenging golf
courses.

During the vast majority of that time, I
took little interest in the management of these
venues because my family and I were quite satisfied
with how they were being managed.  But all that
changed two years ago when the current board of
IVGID was seated and things began to change, and
sadly not for the better.  

I need not go into the details that
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surround this sudden transformation since what this
board has done to destroy the many fine aspects of
this community are well documented.  

Our leadership of IVGID has been decimated
with the resignations or dismissals of three general
managers in the past two years and countless other
senior members, or senior staff either being fired
or pressured to resign.  These facts are a sad
reflection of this board's habit of micromanaging
every aspect of this community which has done but
generate low morale among the many fine employees of
IVGID.  

Quite frankly, I'm appalled by the
unrealistically rapid move to seriously consider
outsourcing the management of IVGID to Troon.  While
taking nothing away from the obvious successes of
Troon management of golf courses throughout the
nation and around the world, I seriously question
their ability to properly manage all aspects of a
government entity like IVGID.  

To the best of my knowledge, they have no
experience in managing so an organization, and they
certainly have never managed a ski area.  Why was
this proposal sprung upon the community by giving
only four days of advanced notice that such an
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undertaking was even being considered?  

And now tonight, this board is prepared to
vote on the separate proposal, that I'm sure has
financial consequences for at least the next
two years, since the contract with Troon cannot
potentially be terminated by IVGID until September
of 2026.  

The proposed contracts calls for a minimum
$270,000 being paid to Troon per year, with the a
2.5 percent increase to be incurred on the contract
anniversary date each year.  In addition, Troon
would be entitled to be paid an incentive management
fee of up to 20 percent of the base management fee
or an additional $54,000 if certain performance
criteria were met.  

Finally, the cost to source, hire, and
onboard a permanent general manager for the District
will be passed on to IVGID, which present another
$300,000.  Why is this board even considering such a
major change in district management when two members
of the current board will no longer be members after
December 31st?  

Is this proposal is such a good idea for
the community to consider, why can't we wait until
three new board members are elected on the November
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5th election, and let them take on this item for
consideration after they are seated on January 1st.  

In summary, I strongly suggest and implore
upon this board to not make any decisions on this
proposal for the sake of and in the best interest of
the entire Incline Village community.

MR. DOBLER:  This is Cliff Dobler.
Changing gears here.  We're talking about
accounting.

In 2015, Linda Newman and I realized that
reporting of IVGID financials were not up to par.
In 2015, Pinkerton decided it would be more
beneficial to change accounting for community
service and beaches recreational venues to lower
operating and costs by eliminating depreciation and
capitalizing repair and maintenance costs.  There
was no basis for the change from enterprise funds to
governmental funds.  

The Department of Taxation provided
guidance, but never approved the change.  Ike lied
to the board, stating approval was granted.  

Over the next four years, we demonstrated
that governmental accounting should not be used.  In
addition, we brought many other accounting issues to
the board but all were ignored.  
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Sarah Schmitz, after joining the board

concluded that Moss Adams should be engaged to study
four areas of Linda mine accounting concerns.  The
recreational funds had to go back to enterprise fund
accounting, punch card accounting was wrong, central
service costs allocations had no backup to support
the allocations, and abuse of capitalization of
expenses needed correction.  

Twenty four additional items were
reviewed, most of which are Moss Adams agreed with
our recommendations.  Very few were put into effect.  

After I joined the Audit Committee, I
immediately began working on expenses which were
capitalized, reviewing three years of costs required
prior period adjustments of $4.8 million to the
financial statements.  

After leaving the Audit Committee, I
expanded to scope for charge-offs and is delivered
30 memorandums for review by the committee.  Some
memos extended beyond capitalization.

Committee members Nolet and Homan
discussed the memos, but no closure report was ever
completed, even though several promises were made.
Nolett and Homan both resigned from the committee
shortly therefore.  
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For two years, members of the rag-tag

committee were in a revolving door and nothing was
accomplished.  The memos were shoved under the rug.  

Based on my extensive work, I believe that
a charge-off on an additional 10.8 million before 2
million depreciation will be required.  

RubinBrown's report indicates, under
observations 8 and 9, related to charge-offs of
repairs and maintenance have a high degree of fraud
risk.  No audited financial statements for 2024 can
be expected due to the high degree of fraud which
exists and has not been addressed.

Thank you very much.
MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright, candidate for

the Board.  
I've listened to everything tonight and

listen to everybody.  We have some pretty talented
people in our community, which I'm glad to see come
out of woodworks and give their two cents.  It is
interesting that people so many solid answers to all
these questions and they are bringing up stuff
that's an absolute ridiculous statement made at this
time.  

We're looking at trying to fix something
that has been identified by a forensic fraud
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analysis by RubinBrown.  There's problems with
Incline, lots of problems, a lot of our money is
going out the door, we're not seeing the best for
our venues, things are wrong here, things are broken
here.  

And I can tell you right now, the majority
of the Board in the next election better have people
who care about this place and not people who care
about what' best for them.  So do a good job when
you look at your candied and find out what their
motivations are for running and think about their
capabilities of fixing what's wrong here.  

I don't think they can be fixed.  I think
it's so bad that we are going to be taken over by
something else.  Not by this Troon.  Maybe by the
county or the state.  That's how bad or finances
are.  You got $7 million that are just not accounted
for.  $7 million, and you're worrying about paying
Troon X amount of dollars to come in here and help
straighten this place out.  

I don't think Troon's is the answer.  I
think there are better answers.  But I don't think a
new board is the answer, and I don't think slapping
this board in the face, because they've been trying
to fix the mess.
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Now, while I was watching on live stream,

I was kind of curious to look out that window behind
Michaela and all the people driving out.  They give
their two cents and they run.  Why are they not
sticking around and listening to other people who
are talking?  And I'm talking about car after car
after car.  I'm guessing the room is pretty empty
right now.  I'm online.  But if the people care
about this community, they'd stick around.

As far as this suggest and proposal, I
think it's got a lot of flaws.  I don't think
there's a lot of things in place are going to give
us guarantees that these things that we have are
going to be fixed and all the money that we have
that is going to come back to us and not keep going
out the door.

As far as statements made tonight about
employees leaving, a lot of these employees left
because they got caught.  A lot of these employees
left because things were not looking good and the
heat was getting on them.  Don't give them credit
for leaving.  And they weren't the valued employees,
they were the employees we had a lot of suspicions
about.  

We need to fix this place and make it
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better or our community.  Please, please stop with
all the finger pointing, and let's see what really
is --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MR. ABEL:  Mike Abel.  
Last week, I presented this board with a

seven-point program to get IVGID on an even keel,
but naturally, no response.

I ran a successful office supply business
for 30 years, made a profit every year, paid my
loyal employees well, including health care
benefits, vacation, 401k.  None of our trustees
except Tulloch have ever had to meet a payroll on
Friday afternoon.  

IVGID is essentially a group up of
businesses that you guys are supposed to manage.
Lack of business experience and you're four
trustees' lack of skill set to run IVGID.  Nobody on
the Board likes Mr. Tulloch, but he's the only one
here with real down-home business experience.

So what' the board majority going to do?
Hire an outside consultant to come here and do their
job?  How much is that going to cost?  Are there to
be full-time, on-site managers?  Where will they
live?  How much do we pay them?  How much do they
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charge an hour?  All good questions.  

Schmitz, Tonking, Dent, and Noble, you are
ignorant of business operations and lack backbone to
fire the corrupt, lying deadwood at IVGID.  You are
all lazy and unwilling to do the hard work necessary
to hire honest, hard-working employees.  You leave
the heavy lifting to an unqualified HR person to do
your work.  Let me just repeat that:  You leave the
heavily lifting to an unqualified HR person to do
your hard work.  

You failed to take care of the community
and taxpayers because most of you are not invested
in long-term stability of IVGID.  Schmitz is as good
as gone with her home at the point of sale.  Dent is
basically a resident of Watsonville, California, at
this point.  Look it up on the web.  Tonking has a
rental home in Denver, Colorado, and probably lives
there.  Noble, the laziest, nastiest, most worthless
trustee lives here, but he brings nothing to the
table.  No creativity.  Tulloch is the only trustee
with brains and business experience in turning
businesses around.  

You four are so much at your useless
agendas and trying to be friends with people you're
supposed to manage who would stab you in the back,
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you can say that a possible -- and I do say possible
solution to IVGID's problems is siting right in
front of you.  

So what are our trustees going to do?
Most likely nothing at all.

And, by the way, when you walk outside and
look around the IVGID property -- I live on
Southwood Boulevard -- every condominium association
here has cleaned their property up.  IVGID's
properties look like crap and is a terrible fire
hazard.  Every community as to mitigate the fire
hazard.  Our -- every condominium association on
Southwood has.  IVGID has yet to clean up their
property this year.  

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Is that our last caller?
MR. BELOTE:  Yes, chair.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will take a break until

8:07, and return back and begin with agenda item D.
(Recess to 8:05 p.m.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It's 8:07.  We'll call the

meeting back to order.  We will begin with approval
of the agenda.
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D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I would like to ask legal
counsel, do we have the opportunity to move item
D -- I'm sorry -- item E, the reports to the board?
Can we change that order and put that after general
business?

MR. RUDIN:  Yes.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  In light of the

interest on the subject, I'm wondering if the rest
of the Board is willing to move agenda item E,
reports to the board, to be the last general
business item or to be following general business,
so that we can begin with general business G 1,
which is the recommendation and direction relative
to the general manager's position.  Is that Board
okay with making that change to the agenda?  

Okay.  So seeing that, we will move on to
general business G 1.
G.  GENERAL BUSINESS  

G 1.  Pending Vacancy of the GM's Position 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Review, discuss, and

possibly approve recommended direction regarding the
pending vacancy of the general manager's position.
Requesting staff member, Director of Human Resources
Erin Feore.  The material can be found on pages 40
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through 43 of the board packet.

MS. FEORE:  Good evening.  I'm going to
take just a quick second to get set up because I
have some notes.  I wanted to make sure I hit all my
high points.

After receiving direction from the Board,
feedback and the direction from the Board at the
June 26th meeting, I reached out to a combination
of -- I had begun my research with reaching out to a
combination of management firms, of recruiting
firms, placement firms.  And then also I had a
handful of individuals reach out and say, hey, what
are you doing with the GM position?  I might be
interested.  

So over the course of that and the time
was kind of smashed here, but ultimately, I did
reach out to 15 different entities, we'll say.  Of
those, five engaged in conversation with me.  Only
one management firm engaged in conversation with me
to talk about the District's needs and what their
services provided.  One was an executive recruiting
firm, and then three individuals, ultimately, who
had municipality experience had reached out and
talked with me.  

Of the remaining organizations, six did
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not respond despite repeated attempts to contact.
And four either didn't offer the types of services
that we requested, or they, basically, stated that
they were not equipped to offer the services that
they believed they understood from out organization,
having watched some of our board meetings and read
up on our organization.  

At the July 10th board meeting, the
Board's majority opinion was that I focus my
research into a management-type firm.  So as
directed, I work with Chair Schmitz to make contact
and work with Troon, which is a management company,
the only management company I had spoken with
previously, and its vice president, Joe Goodrich,
along with a few of his associates.

Working with chair Schmitz, we had a few
conversations with Joe and his team so that I could
provide them with as much detailed information as I
could about our organization -- or organization and
its operations.  

I wanted to make this clear at this time:
Troon was only organization that reached out to me
to provide services that they offer.  I was not able
to speak with other management firms outside of
those that just said your organization is unique,
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and we don't have the resources available to support
your team.

I also do want to note, because I believe
it's been stated before and I received personal
comments about this, I did not do a cost analysis
because the proposal was received after my memo was
written.  If so directed, that is something I can
absolutely provide to the Board.

Lastly, I just wanted to make sure that
I'm stating very clearly that I wanted to provide
you with an example of services provided by this
management organization.  As such, we did invite the
Troon folks to come and present to the Board of
Trustees an outline of their services, if so
directed.  

And I can ask them to come up to the Board
or I can answer questions.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any questions?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  What scope of work did

you provide to them in order to come up with this
proposal?

MS. FEORE:  I don't have a formal scope of
work.  It was mostly just talking about our
organization and some of the -- utilizing some of
the consulting reports that have been made
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available.  I spoke with them about what I
understood, based on the feedback that I received
from the Board, were our needs.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have more questions,
but I'll wait to hear from Troon to see if they
answer them.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I mean, you're
absolutely correct, this did not go out as an RFP
proposal.  This is basically an RFI, this is
basically finding something there.  

I hear your nervousness.  Don't be
nervous.  The irrigations are directed at the Board,
not yourself, please don't take it that way.  I find
it disappointing that the community's aiming at you.

But -- and again, just for clarity, this
is not a contract we've been asked vote on, that is
correct, isn't it?

MS. FEORE:  No.  This is just an indicator
of their services.

I know that there was a proposal that was
indicated.  I believe the reason why they included
that information is because they knew that would be,
ultimately, a question of the Board, what kind of
money are we looking at to pay for these services?  

So, no, this is not a contract that would
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have much involvement with our general counsel.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Having done some of
these contracts, I know how much work goes into and
how detailed they have to be.  Thank you.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I, too, just want to thank
you for your diligence.  And we really directed you
to focus on what management companies could bring to
the table, but you went the practice step.  You went
and you followed up with people who are brought to
your attention from BBK.  

I commend you for giving us alternatives
to, once again, consider.  And thank you for the
effort.  

And I think that if Troon would like to
share their thoughts on how they could potentially
assist the District and assist the Board, I think we
would like to hear from them.

MR. GOODRICH:  Good evening.  First and
foremost, thank you to the Board of Trustees for the
time.  It's great to be here.  It's a nice reprieve
from the Arizona heat this time of year.  You guys
certainly have a little piece of heaven up here.  

Please, first and foremost know, we're not
here to make any decisions.  We're simply here to
have a conversation and allowing the Board of
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Trustees to make the best decision moving forward.
It's a conversation, we're going to highlight our
management approach and how it may be of benefit as
things move forward.  

While it's not always pleasant to hear
feedback, we are a professional organization, and
the comments are certainly understood.  We'll do our
best to address each of those as we go through the
presentation.  The passion for community is
commendable and respect everything that's been said
to this point.  Again, we appreciate the time.

That said, we've got a quick, 15-page
PowerPoint presentation that will further highlight
the proposal that we were appreciative to submit.
We're going to look to make our initial
introductions.  We'll highlight our experience and
capabilities, certainly talk through the proposal
and potential solutions as we see things moving
forward.  

Then the most important piece on our end
is to open up to question to where we can be as
transparent as possible.  We're happy to answer any
question from all of you.

The team, again, to my right and your left
is our chief operating officer, Mike Ryan.  We've
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got Tony Morano, who I believe is further down to
the right.  Joe Goodrich, you just heard, and
myself.

At the end of the day, our company started
back the 1990, and what we pride ourselves on is
creating an unmatched culture.  While we are a
hospitality corporation, we do pride ourselves on
collaborative partnerships, listening to the various
different goals and objective of each of our
clients.  It's not a cookie-cutter approach where we
do it the same at every location.  All of our
various partners and clients have different wants,
needs, and desires.  We look to provide industry,
unmatched resources to help those partners
accomplish those goals.  

We obviously do not pretend to be perfect
at the end of the day.  We make mistakes every day,
but the fact of our continued growth and retention
rate, our overall client satisfaction bodes well to
where we do a good job of listening, and, again, not
making it about Troon, but out of those respective
needs for all of our clients.

The family of brands, what started back in
1990 as a Troon golf-centric company is now a Troon
hospitality company as of today.  The comments are

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  96
absolutely correct where that is our core business
as of today, but ultimately we are a
hospitality-driven organization.  

You can see the four major brands up on
the screen, our golf-centric divisions.  And then
below that are ancillary brands focus on other
amenities and client based needs.  We're certainly
big in the racket sports, the real food division
encompasses food and beverage needs for our
expertise in various food and beverage outlets, not
just golf course restaurants, really provides what
our clients are looking for from a food and beverage
perspective.  

We've got our own in-house, golf course
construction division to where we have a civil
engineer on property.  Again, you have talked not
only about golf course needs, but different amenity
needs from a construction standpoint, that exists
within our organization.  

We are in the HOA space, and we will touch
on that in a little while, to where we did acquire a
group two years go to where we do have Troon
expertise in the HOA community space.  

Then most recently, a group, Event Sports,
that focuses primarily on event management to
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include college game day experiences with the
University of Alabama, Auburn, Indy car race series,
and then they also host professional golf events to
where, again, it's not just solely focused on golf,
but all the broad-based amenities that exist within
our HOA and partner clients.

MR. RYAN:  My name is Mike Ryan, Chief
Operating Officer for Troon.  I've been with the
organization for 23 years.  Probably about 35 to
37 years in the industry.

I want to talk a little bit about -- and
we had the opportunity to listen to all the public
comments.  We appreciate that.  We appreciate the
passion that all the residents certainly
articulated.  We get that, we understand that.  

This opportunity is for us to provide a
solution, an opportunity otherwise different from
what you've done in the past.  That's our goal here
today.  Have a conversation, open up those options,
and talk about things that we can provide from a
resource standpoint that may be a bit different that
how you've approach the business in the past.
That's our sole purpose.  

If we walk out of here in the next
few hours and you decide to go a different
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direction, that's perfectly fine.  We're open to
that.  We're good.

But I wanted to give a little bit of
background on what the company looks like today.
When I started 23 years ago, we had 60 properties.
We're at 900 locations today.  We've had tremendous
growth.  That's been done organically, one at a
time, by Joe and his colleagues on our business
development team.  And then we've actually had
strategic acquisition along the way as well.  It's
been very successful, very rewarding for me
personally.  

900 locations, as I mentioned.  120-plus
clubs within residential communities.  200-plus
private and semiprivate clubs.  And 85-plus
government clients.  That's 160 locations.  That
touches federal, state, county, city, town, and
villages.  So we're in that space.  We're in the
municipal space.  Joe is an expert in that area and
he can give some more feedback there.  

The map that you see on the screen
indicates our presence around the globe.  I'm sure
there's some of those logos that you all recognize,
and we're certainly proud of the achievements we've
made in some of the facilities and clients that we
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get to work for.

17 corporate locations today.  Again, when
I started, it was one location in Scottsdale, and
now you can see the red stars that representing all
of our corporate locations around the globe.

I touched on the lifestyle and residential
communities that we represent.  This is a sampling
of those brands, and I'm sure most of you are
familiar with.  Toll Brothers, Linar, Taylor Morrs,
Del Webb, Pulte, and the Carl Freeman companies.
Very proud of the work that we've done in that space
for highly amenitized communities, beyond just golf.  

An interesting fact that's evolved over
time is we survey or private club members and
residents all of the time.  And I know there's been
a lot of discussion today about how we're a golf
centered company.  As we survey our residents, it's
interesting to where golf fits into that ecosystem
now.  It used to be number one.  Many times, now
golf may be second, third or fourth in importance.
A lot of it is lifestyle, fitness, food and
beverage, areas that we have expertise.  

That's a bit of sampling there as it
relates to the homeowner communities that are
currently involved with.  
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Brandon touched on our entree into the HOA

business.  We started that several years ago as we
took on opportunities that included some master
association management.  That was a bit super
charged when we acquired Icon Management two years
ago, where we have a full-blown HOA portion of the
company today.  These facilities that you see on the
screen represent locations where we have that
opportunity.  Probably some of these, you recognize
or have visited in the past.

These four clubs were highlighted in our
proposal.  I'll just give a quick brief.  We've been
heavily successful as it relates to the operations
of these clubs.  With one being bran new.  That's a
non-golf community in Delaware, where we're just
getting started, 2,200 condo units, and we'll manage
the entire community there.  That just started about
30 days ago.

Red Ledges in Utah, they've been a client
since 2007, just outside of Park City, premier,
upscale community.  The clubs at St. James in North
Carolina, actually it's a community that we acquired
back in 2018.  81 holes of golf, four clubhouses,
and recognized amongst distinguished clubs.  Again,
that's an owned asset.  Our primary business is in
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the third-party management side.  We do have five
facilities in the portfolio that we own outright,
this being one of them, St. James.

Then a highly amenitized club in Palm
Beach Gardens, 1,500 members, expansive facilities,
four golf courses, and again recognized by
Distinguished Clubs of America.

Lastly, I'll touch on this before I turn
it over to Joe, this is a highlight of the various
resources that are provided within our organization.
Again, I think there was a lot of discussion and
maybe this is an opportunity to clear up some
misperceptions that relates to the services that we
do provide.  

Obviously, golf, food and beverage sales
and marketing, racket sports, risk management,
design and development.  We have a golf course
construction company.  Certainly technology.  The
HOAs, I touched on.  Retail, human resources, these
are all areas of expertise that we can help and
provide resources for your on-site staff here at
Incline.

Again, a sample of that.  We'll get into
more detailed, but we'll jump right back into part
of the proposal going forward.
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MR. GOODRICH:  My name's Joe Goodrich.

Been with the organization for 32 years.  Been
involved in renovation, construction, club
management, marketing, agronomy, design/development.
And most recently spending my time looking for
situations where people need some assistance or some
expertise.

We submitted a proposal to you with an
option, and I want to tell you how we got there.
Gotten a lot of feedback on or proposal and
understand that.  

We put up there:  Your situation, your
solution.  What I did is I spent a lot of time, had
some conversations with Erin, she's fantastic, she's
provided me copies of different reports.  I've
spent hours on your website, listened to the last
three board meetings, gotten feedback from that.  I
read Moss Adams, RubinBrown, Raftelis, Moss Adams
2.0.

I understand that you brought in
consultants, but they lacked the operational
insights and ability to executive.  There were
consultants that came that provided opinion, you
needed an outside agency to do that, and that was
great.
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You have here absolutely paradise.  I can

understand why the community is so protective of
their community and wanting to make sure nothing's
outsourced.  I heard that, Michaela, I listened to
your comments in June 26th, and one of your biggest
concerns was outsourcing.  

I want to be very clear, when we created
this proposal, it's not outsourcing management.
What we said here is we're going to go hire and
source a transition general manager, who we have
identified, we will work with the leadership teams,
staff, board, and then start sourcing a new general
manager.  

Once the new board is set, we'll start and
advance, but the new board will approve that general
manager.  I just want to clear that up in terms from
a proposal standpoint, we really try to tailor our
proposal what we needs thought your needs were at
the surface with all the research we did.

I looked at our internal resources, we
have situations where we'll do things under a
shorter-term basis, and go place an interim general
manager.  After me looking at your situation,
realizing what's happened with the amount of
turnover with leadership, I looked at it and said
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they have a vacuum.  They need somebody with some
resources and some support.  Not only for the
current leadership team, but also for the board and
incoming board so they are not left picking up
pieces and trying to figure it out.  

I'd also like to say that in looking at
past general managers -- and I understand a lot of
the comments today regarding the huge need for
public works and how important and critical that is
from an infrastructure standpoint, things like that,
I would also say that some of those general managers
lacked some of the business and hospitality
expertise that you need in this environment as it
relates to your food and beverage outlets, beaches,
and other things.  

I'm going to tell you our approach.
There's a lot of words up there, but we have up
there is we come in, we listen, we understand, we
plan, and we executive.

We provide support, stability,
accountability across the departments.  We don't do
that unilaterally, we don't do anything without
board approval and board direction.  We're acting as
a resource to you and future boards to help you make
the right decisions and to allow the senior

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 89 of 271



 105
leadership team a peer group, as other senior
leaders in same positions in other areas of to
country and other facilities, to lean on, exchange,
things like that.  And we have an incredible amount
of corporate support to support their efforts.  

We looked at improved communications
across departments within the community and the
Board.  I will say that this approach, wasn't our
approach 10, 15 years ago, but I can tell you, we've
sat in a lot of meetings just like, we've seen a lot
of situations just like this around -- with
communities where they're looking for the right
solution.  And everybody wants the right solution.
We understand that.

I will say that what we feel is most
important is to increase resident engagement,
improve the experience of the residents, improve the
experience and engagement with the associates
through training and support, and provide for proper
feedback mechanisms, both from an associate
standpoint as well as a resident standpoint.  

I think one of the things we're good at is
the prioritization of resources, both from an
operating standpoint, capital standpoint, that we
can create to go executive on strategic and annual
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operating plans that the Board approves.

We look at this image here, pretty
interesting.  A lot of times we talk to facilities
and clubs, they say, well, we are just going to hire
a GM, we don't need a management company, we need to
hire a GM.  

The reality is you can't hire a management
company without a GM.  It's not a replacement.  You
need a qualified general manager.  The reality is is
given the scope of your community, given the scope
of what has to happen here, the expertise all
around, I will say it is almost impossible for one
individual to basically make sure that the community
reaches its fullest potential.  Yeah, they can do
the job, they can handle things.  But are you really
allowing yourself to go above and beyond?  

And that's where we come in.  We're
providing support to that general manager, that
general manager reports to this board.  We're going
to go source that person, you're going to approve
that person and answer to you.  We're not pulling
any strings back in Scottsdale and saying we're
going to raise or we're going to fire this person.
That doesn't happen.

We're providing support and direction, not
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only to the general manager, but to the rest of your
leadership team.  Very similar to you having a
standalone general manager, you have each of these
departments that are connected not together but
answering to this general manager.  We call the COO
the general manager.  Okay.  That works, but you
know what?  Every one of those individuals -- and we
toured all your facilities yesterday, you got some
fantastic people.  How are you doing today?
Engagement was good.  Communication was good.  I can
tell there's a lot of people that care an awful lot.
The reality is they've been a little bit in a
leadership vacuum.  I know we're trying to address
that, and that will take some time.  Trial and
error.  Our proposal is designed to get you there
quicker, without a lot of mistakes, without a lot of
lost time.

This is everybody's answering up to this
one general manager, but those people don't have any
other support.  He's where we come in.  Here's how
we're supporting the general manager in areas of --
and other departments, so human resources, not that
we're telling Erin what to do, but the fact that
were' a resource to her.  We have 30,000 associates,
we're dealing with different systems, different
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processes.  

A procurement team, national accounts from
a pricing and leverage standpoint.  Our pricing for
fertilizer, chemicals, equipment, all of those
things is beyond what any single facility, single
community.  As the largest management company in the
world, we have more leverage than anybody to provide
savings and benefit to you.

We have a clubhouse design and development
team, in house.  We've done 200-plus renovations of
recreation facilities, clubhouse facilities,
designed those from an operational perspective so
they not only look good, give a great first
impression, but they're functional.

We also are supporting the rest of the
senior leadership team through operations and
marketing.  A food and beverage team.  Recreation
and parks, lifestyle and agronomy.  Public works.
Although we don't operate public works, we operate
in many community associations, HOAs, and CBDs that
do have their own roads.  We have one facility in
Kapalua, Hawaii, where we are in charge of our water
and sewer.  Not a lot, but we're not total
neophytes.

Then also from an admin, finance, IT, and
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HR standpoint, I understand the transition to Munis
system didn't go great.  It' was done a little bit
in a vacuum.  We understand that, we've gone through
a lot of those organization shifts as well, but we
can be resource to get you up and running.

I put together here a timeline.  We've,
and maybe presumptuously, if we were to be engaged
on September 1st, we would place a transition
manager that you would approve.  We've actually
already identified somebody.  Somebody that is
incredibly interested in coming to work here.  They
would be available the first week of October on a
full-time basis.  That person has an incredible
amount of experience managing facilities that do
over $65 million a year, managing large community
assets, have experience in this market, and would
love to give back.

We put a timeline here of a new board
being placed in the January time frame, and we said
at the same time, we're going to engage in a lot of
activities but also searching or putting out sources
for a permanent general manager, somebody that we
would source, new board approves, and they would be
placed locally.  They would live here, they wouldn't
commute in from three, two, four hours away.
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That transition manager would meet with

board members.  This is hard to read.  But basically
prioritize and executive on outstanding board items,
operating capital items, and consultant reporters.
I understand there's a lot of discussion about
RubinBrown, I think what I saw was the draft report,
and it was other a three-year time frame.  I was
questioning, okay, we need to understand what is
outstanding and what needs to happen and prioritize
those things, address those things head-on.

We'd also start workshops from an
operations capital standpoint and finalize those in
Q 1.  We would also meet with leadership positions
departments, and I focus on people, processes, and
performance, making sure that we got great people,
they've got great direction.  We want to learn from
them, we want to understand their current processes
and understand if there's anything that can be done
to improve performance or efficiencies.  

Department meetings, we would set up time
to introduce that transition manager.  Department
staffing plan review, I understand that usually
works hand in hand with the budget process.  We'd
establish an operating budget and goals for 2025.
We'd establish department KPIs for 2025.
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I've looked at your financials online in

as much detail as I can, and I have a thousand
questions go deeper.  There's just not enough
information there online for us to make
recommendations to you now.  But I can tell you,
looking at food and beverage, there was a comment
that food and beverage made 100,000 on $3.5 million.
Our, kind of, benchmark, industry benchmark,
facilities like that should be making 20 percent
margin.  At $3.5 million, you should be producing
$700,000; you're making a 100.  But, again, I have a
thousand questions.

And then I've looked at your multi-year
capital plans and understanding how those fit and
prioritize within the overall budget of the
community.   

At the same time, we would be introducing
our Troon resources by department, I've outlined
those there.  Then also community engagement.  I
save the best for last.  I think it's, one,
understanding community, each community's is unique
and different, both meet the transition GM and
permanent GM, and set up feedback mechanisms from an
operational perspective.  We look at those as
ongoing throughout the year, how was your experience
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at rec and park?  How was your experience at the
beach?  Those are feedback.  How are we doing?  Let
me take your pulse.  

We also then have feedback mechanisms for
strategic planning, were we will ask resident
feedback on asking them for priorities, where they
would like to see more programming, less
programming.  Where they would like to see more
investment, less investment.  And we get feedback
from the entire community on that, and then
synthesize that into these capital plans going on
forward.  

Last but not least is the strategic
planning, which is ongoing and working, I'll say
when the new board starts, kind of an ongoing,
looking-forward basis.  

What we provide here is our was our
proposed terms.  We would place a transition,
permanent GM.  You pay no sourcing fees or placing
fees or anything like.  That would be part of
monthly fee.  We would provide support and resources
to IVGID, departments and board.  We suggested a
three-year term.  

We said that the GM salary, onboarding,
and burden would be a pass-through cost to the
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community.  You would approve that comp package and
it would be one hundred percent transparent.  

There was a lot of discussions about
incentives and our incentives.  We'd like to have an
incentive.  And our incentive needs to be based upon
your reaching your goals.  Some of those may be
financial, they may not.  Our typical incentive
structure is that we set up an amount that's not to
exceed 20 percent of our base fee, and there's
criteria that are based equally between financial
performance, associate engagement, and resident
feedback.  We have some that don't have any
financial measure at all.

Our goal is to improve the resident
experience and make sure you have a sustainable
community that's addressing infrastructure and is,
I'll say, pushing the envelope, top of class, in
meeting the needs of the community, both today and
well into the future, to protect the values of homes
and community lifestyle.

I also say one last thing.  We've also
done things on a shorter-term basis.  We wanted to
put this together for discussion, your feedback.
And I'd like to say we like to get involved in
situations where we can help.  I think there's a lot
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of opportunity for us to help here and be a resource
to you.

We're not looking to come in and
outsource.  We act as your agent, and we're acting
upon your direction.  We think that our involvement
will, again, supercharge you and get you ready
for -- there's been a lot of discussion about it --
the next board.  

I look at this move, and maybe I'm jaded,
but I look at us being in a position to help the
next board, as opposed to waiting for next board to
then start putting things together.  I look at us
being able to accelerate that.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you for the

presentation and thank you for taking the time to
review all of our prior assessments that have been
done and what have you.  It's clear that you have
put a lot of time and effort into this.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have a series of
questions.

My first question, I have a series of
questions about your experience, and I would like
some concrete examples.  I looked at some of your
prior projects -- current and prior projects that
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you listed in your proposal, and I didn't see these
skill sets and I'm hoping that you can either speak
to them or tell us if they exist.

My first one is public works experience.
The only one I saw was Kapalua.  I looked that up.
It's much different than the needs of our district.
What other examples do you have of public works
experience?  Because according to NRS, public works
is our main charter, with recreation added years
later.  Just want that because that's a health and
safety.

TROON:  Public works, meaning road or
water sewer?  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Public works would be
your water, sewer, that's what our charter sits
with.

TROON:  We have very little -- no
experience in pubic works in water and sewer.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Then in terms of
governmental accounting and governmental compliance,
especially related to Open Meeting Law, union
negotiations, as well as NRS statue, because those
are big issues here.  And I just notice even in your
proposal, there's some violations of NRS, which is
fine.  But I'm just asking what your experience is
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with those areas.

TROON:  With governmental accounting, we
produce financial statements for over 400 entities
on a monthly basis.  150 of those are municipal, bot
at a both federal, state, city, county, village, and
township level.  We have over 60 audits on an annual
basis, and in the last three years, there's never
been a finding.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Okay.
TROON:  As it relates to open meetings, we

operate over 50 facilities in the State of Florida.
From a standpoint of open meetings and that, very
aware, dealing with -- we have over 85 municipal
clients.  And I would say that from a open meeting
and municipal experience, that's it.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  That's nothing in terms
of union negotiations, experience with NRS,
experience around like --

TROON:  I can address the union
negotiations.  We do have employees that are
unionized, and we have the internal resources that
have assisted in negotiating CVAs, primarily in
Hawaii.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Are they unionized under
state compliance statutes, or are they just
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unionized under, like, a separate --

TROON:  It's the ILWU.  It's actually been
very smooth.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I also want to know
about your experience working with federal
organizations.  We get a lot of our funding,
especially around clean water, sewage, all of that
comes from governmental and federal agencies, as
well as we have contracts coming up with the Forest
Service, and experience working in heavily regulated
environmental regulated areas.  

What is your experience doing those
things?

TROON:  From a federal standpoint with one
agreement that we operate three facilities on behalf
of the federal government in Washington DC, I would
say all of our municipal agreements, all our
municipal facilities answer up to parks and rec from
the -- what was the last part of your question?

TRUSTEE TONKING:  We basically -- I think
what I'm really asking is how do you work -- because
we have to work with multiple federal agencies in
terms of being within one local agency.  

I'd like to know how you work in high
environmental restrictions?
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TROON:  We have several facilities which

are under costal commission in California, that are
also oceanfront in the State of Hawaii.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What is your experience
running a ski resort?  I didn't see one in there, so
I'd like to know your experience doing that.

TROON:  We actually have one ski resort
that we operate.  It is fairly small, maybe eight to
ten runs.  It's fairly small.  

We're not going to elude to the fact that
we operate a bunch of ski resorts.  

Your ski resort is actually doing pretty
well, and your leadership there seems pretty strong.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yeah.  But if you're
coming in to be the GM, you have to oversee those,
the skill set.  

TROON:  The GM that we've talked about
from a transition standpoint, actually does have ski
experience in his résumé.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What is your experience
with Tyler technology?  That's a big miss on our
area if you looked at the RubinBrown report and
other things going on.

TROON:  We do not operate any Tyler Munis
systems.  We integrate with many other systems where
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we're actually handling operations for point of
sale.  We're familiar with your Vermont systems, we
actually encounter them many times in the municipal
world.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think we're
transitioning away from that.

TROON:  These are important things that
the Tyler Munis system needs to be able to do if
you're utilizing that for point of sale and some
other things.  

I'm aware of them as a vendor, but we
don't operate them.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  And then, I guess, I
wanted to ask a little bit about what you put in
your proposal, and I understand that that's not
fully vetted out.

My first is question is how would you
define IVGID, what do you think IVGID is?

TROON:  You are the -- my understanding
and I've been on your website, you are the general
improvement district for this community that is
overseeing infrastructure, water, sewer, utilities,
recreational amenities, and programs for the
residents.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What is a general
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improvement district, then, how would you define
that?  That's what I want to know because it's so
different and it's unique.  I just want to make sure
you understand how those operate in compliance with
local, state --

TROON:  My understanding is it's pretty
similar to a CDD in Florida and other states where
you've gone out and bonded major infrastructure
improvements, and then you're charged with managing
them, whether it's like water, sewer, utilities,
recreational amenities, and serving the community.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  And then I want to talk
a little bit about your incentive plan.  And maybe
this is a question for legal.  

At what point do we become in trouble
offering incentives based off financials in terms of
running as a government agency?  

I'm thinking a lot in terms of our
government bonds, I'm thinking in terms of our tax
exempt status and those types of things.

MR. RUDIN:  In terms of the compensation,
I mean, it would be recommended that it be
sufficiently definite.  You want to avoid an issue
as to whether or not you are going to have a payment
dispute with a vendor, to -- you don't want to get
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into a situation where you're having questions as to
whether or not, one, additional compensation is
owned, two, whether there are questions whether or
not you're gifting them public money for work not
performed.  

Again, terms of any incentive structure,
you're going to want to have that be failed down
sufficiently clearly in the contract.

I don't think additional compensation that
is set forth in a contract is likely to cause you
issues on any bond debt that you may have, you know,
provided that you're meeting your debt coverage
ratios and whatever bond covenants are out there.  

Yeah, I think the big one is just making
clear that you know what you've signed up for and
what you owe them, and that's set forth in the
agreement.

TROON:  I think it's important that we
talk about flexibility in that topic.  Knowing that
we would be incentivized on how you all define
success.  And if we achieve that, whether that be
financial, resident satisfaction, whatever those
metrics are determined.  

And I would even think that it might be a
situation where in year one of an agreement that we
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don't have an incentive, and we apply that in year
two or three as the partnership develops.  

I just want you all to understand that we
have complete flexibility in that regard, and there
was a lot of discussion in the public comments about
that.  We're open to ideas and suggestions in that
light.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  And I'm understanding
that the GM salary, unburdened and burdened, that is
covered in the $22,500 we would be paying per month
or we're paying that in addition?

TROON:  You're paying that in addition.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Great.
TROON:  But I can tell you, you're going

to be way ahead.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have last one.
TROON:  I did want to ask you one

question.  You had about a question about debt -- or
bond counsel, all of our agreements, we work --
whether it's like Chicago Park District, City of
Philadelphia, they through bond counsel review, and
one, to make sure there's taxable debt, nontaxable
debt.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Then my last question to
you is answering a bunch of my questions for you
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telling me about your experience, how do you think
that you would actually be able to make a strategic
plan without the experience of many of these
organizations that we -- or many of these centers
that we oversee if you don't have the experience,
then, how do you make a strategic plan around that?

TROON:  I think our approach on our
strategic plan was to to come in, listen, plan,
speak with the key leadership positions here, speak
with staff, look at residential feedback, feedback
from the residents, the board.  

We produce strategic plans for
communities, clubs at 900 locations, so we're very
familiar with the process.  We're not as familiar
with your situation, and I wouldn't expect us to be
at this time.  

I think that the next 30, 60, 90 days for
us to get that information and help prioritize
decision-making with a lot of experience, as opposed
to your trying to write that strategic plan on your
own.

One thing to think about is I know you all
have deployed consultants throughout the last
several years, as a different way to look at it,
where we as an operating arm can provide that same
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advice, but then help executive and provide
resources to help executive going forward.  

A little bit different from a typical
consultant arrangement.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  No offense to you all, I
just think there's probably other firms with more
skillings in our area, and I would like to put this
out to RFP.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just help me understand
the actual scope of the work you're proposing.
It's -- I think I see it.  Basically what you're on
providing is almost a mentoring/advisory service to
a new GM?

TROON:  No.  I think it goes beyond that.
It is definitely getting that general manager
identified, allowing you to select that person and
hiring, and then providing that person with a lot of
support.  

But it's really not as much support to
that general manager as it is support to the other
leadership positions within the community, and I
think we've highlighted those, where it's IT, HR,
marketing, food and beverage, golf operations,
recreation/lifestyle, just so that group has some
other peers and resources that they can call upon in
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other situations that can help them get down the
road faster.  I'll say that.

(Cross talk.)
TROON:  We provide a lot of skills and

resources.  And this was me looking your situation
and saying you've got an incredible vacuum,
leadership vacuum.  You're going to hire great
people and peopling are coming.  I know someone just
started rec.  Great things.  

But how do we get that person up and
running and getting maximizing their potential,
which maximizes the potential of community.  That's
where I see it.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Basically it's an
arrangement of advisory services.  

The next question is are all these
advisory services included in the management fee or
are all these all ad hoc services is that billed
each individually each time?

TROON:  Everything that was described in
that org chart that overlaid or subject matter
experts is included in the management fee.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That's a very important
part of it.   

I think with regard a lot of the
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consultants reports, part of the problem is we have
not necessarily has the resources to it forward,
there's pushback from various different sectors of
the community, all sorts of different reasons why.
The Board only has one employee.  The Board doesn't
run day-to-day operations, contrary to some of the
things you heard there.  It's very much down to the
general manager to actually move these things
forward.  

Some other things, you talked about 20
percent margin on food and beverage, is that net or
gross?

TROON:  What we typically look for from a
benchmarking standpoint if you're in an operation
from, say, food and beverage that's not fine
dinning, that's, I'll say, resident public access,
you got group events and things like, it's usually,
gross revenues, I'll say, labor is running about 35
to 40 percent, cost of goods are usually running
about 35 percent, operating expenses are about 10
percent.  And then that leaves about a balance of
20.  

I think our average food and beverage
margin across the portfolio in like facilities, what
we've seen, is the higher than that.  
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But I will say that we also see -- it

really comes down from an accounting standpoint, how
much are you charging the food and beverage for
building and heating and utilities and all that.
You can get into that.  I would say it should be
doing better than this doing.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  No disagreement on that.
But 20 percent net margin is certainly very good in
terms of that.

I'm glad you mentioned KPIs and
benchmarks.  You obviously have a range of
benchmarks from other properties where you can do
some comparisons.

Where the real rubber really hits the road
is in terms of negotiating a contract.  It's not
something you do in a week, a 10-page board memo or
anything.  It's a whole -- to me, the key things are
shared risk is obviously important, that everyone
has some skin in the game, responsibilities and
authorities of both parties to make sure it's all
very clearly delineated.

Quality and service levels, without
quality and service levels, these agreements are not
worth anything.  I've worked in merger and
acquisitions where it's very easy for somebody just
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to stop the CapEx spending for a couple years to
make the company look better, but it doesn't
actually help in longer term.  

To me, if we move forward in this, it's
actually making sure that we develop a proper
contract.  That does take some time on both sides.
It's a painful process.

TROON:  I think one of things to think
about is clearly defining our scope.  I think there
was a lot of comments relative to us making changes
in a vacuum without board approval, and that' just
not the case.  

One of things is as we've grown our
private club model, over 200 clubs, I'm just using
this as an example, but one of the things that our
business development team runs up against a lot is a
perception of lack of control.  And the control
rests right here.  And we execute the strategic
vision and the plan according to what the Board has
approved.

I want to make that clear that we're just
not going to go in and make changes or price
modifications to things without having a discussion
and a plan and approval to do so.  We can't do that.
We're not allowed to.
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  At the end of the day,

it's the quality of services and the level of
services.  And everyone expects more services for
the same money.  It's not always possible.

It's actually making sure -- it's
something we've been kind of weak on, we don't have
defined service levels in most instances.

TROON:  I agree with you a hundred
percent.  Getting to the right agreement makes a lot
of sense.

One thing that we did not mention, our
organization has a 96 percent renewal rate when we
get to the end of an agreement.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Question with regards to

the interim GM and GM.  On page 5, of the initial
presentation that we were given over the weekend,
states that Troon shall source, hire, employ, with
Board approval, the District general manager.

And then looking at the terms on page 16,
that the GM salary and onboarding burden is a
pass-through cost to IVGID.  Is your proposal that
the GM would be -- and the interim GM would be
employees of Troon or employees of IVGID?

TROON:  The general manager, whether a
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transition general manager or permanent, the idea
would be they employee an employee of Troon.  But
reporting to the board, according to our org chart.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  And then I'm looking at
page 14 of the newest presentation.  And we know
what we need to do.  We have master plans, we have a
couple of Moss Adams reports.  We have a RubinBrown
report.  We had a food and beverage report.  We have
facilities reports.  We know what we need to do.

What is, though, you are going to do to
help us executive those plans that is different than
what we can do with our personnel?  Besides telling
us again what we need to do?

TROON:  We are operators.  We operate
facilities.  We execute on plans.  We do that with
great information and experience where we've
executed and done that before.  And we understand we
can't expect food and beverage to operate at 50
percent, we shouldn't expect it to operate 2
percent.  

Here's where we need to get, so there's an
education process and a buy-in of, like, here's what
we think we need to do.  What are the departmental
KPIs, how are we measuring ourselves?  It doesn't
have to be financial, but we have -- I'll say what
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we are organized as an organization, we execute on
things.  We have people that go executive on annual
plans.  

I think you've got -- and we get approval
and we go executive.  It's part of, I'll say, the
way we're wired.

You probably got staff that doesn't know
they are approved to go do it, they can't go do it.
Have they done it before?  What other resources do
they have to say, okay, I know I want to do this,
but maybe I did it in a previous situation, but I
had these other people.  What other support do I
have to get me down the road and into a confident
position of execution?

I don't have enough insights into the
leadership on why certain things, maybe, haven't
been done or you got feedback on this should be done
or this could be done.  

I also looked the level that those
consultant reports went to.  It was a lot about job
descriptions, it was a lot about organizational
policies and procedures.  None of it was what needs
to be executed from a business standpoint.  Not one
of those -- maybe one touched on it, how to improve
to resident experience.  How are you going survey
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and get feedback.  There was one that said they,
maybe, do it, but then said you could do this on
your own.  

We do that in a hundred other communities.
And I have a lot of other examples to point to and
say what's going to work best here?  And then go do
it.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  If the GM is on your
payroll, does that mean when you leave, they leave
with you?

TROON:  That would be up to the GM.  If
they wanted to stay and there was an opportunity for
that person to stay, that happens more often than
not.  The people that work with us, see a career and
want to advance.  But there's total flexibility in
that.  

And if we got to a point where the
situation is more advisory in nature and you all
wanted to employ the general manager, we could have
that discussion.  If you look at our portfolio
across the globe, internationally as an example,
there's employed by a different entity.

If that's is a breaking point in the
conversation, we can talk about that.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'd like you to just talk
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about the process of how a general manager would be
placed.  Would you be bringing to the Board
different candidates to interview and to select?
How would that process actually work?  And what if,
at some point in time, it didn't work well, then
what?

TROON:  Great question.  
We have some clients will ask us to bring

one candidate to the table, and we'll have some
clients that want to interview seven, eight
individuals.  There's probably an in-between there,
three to four candidates.  It's really driven by how
you all want to move forward this in that process.  

We would do the initial vetting of those
individuals and bring what we think would be a good
fit for the community.  And then you all, in
collaboration with us, would make the final decision
on who you want to make an offer to.  

On the second part of that question, if
you got down to road, six months, a year, and you
say this is not working, it's not what we expected,
we would make a change.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And -- we have -- our HR
director has worked and worked to try to bring us GM
candidates, and we haven't been successful.  Why
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would you be successful at this when we haven't seen
the success of the candidates that have been brought
to us?

TROON:  I think the fact that we're a
preferred employer, and we're sought out by
individuals that want to work for us and be part of
our organization is a benefit.  

I also think that, especially for my first
time here, seeing the size of this opportunity, to
be able to place a general manager and stand behind
that general manager will all of the resources that
we described would be the huge benefit and a huge
opportunity for that individual to be more
successful in that role, versus how they've been in
the standalone position in the past.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  What would you see as
being the impact to our existing staff?

TROON:  Actually, very little impact.
Those individuals would remain in their current
employment status.  We would spend time with those
individuals to find out -- to listen and learn as
Joe indicated, on what's important to them, where
they need help.  

We would then develop a plan being able
that stand up additional resources in whatever area
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that might be.  I know we're short or deficient
maybe the ski side, public works side, but certainly
as it relates to accounting and finance, sales and
marketing, food and beverage, human resources, we
have subject matter experts that reside in our
corporate to office that can provide opportunity and
provide learning opportunities for those individuals
and share best practices.  

That's how we've accomplished that in 900
other organizations.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  What do you mean by
"learning opportunities and sharing best practices,"
what do you mean by d I that?

TROON:  What we've seen is when you look
at an individual property or facility, they're
operating and their environment.  They don't have a
lot of other peer support or other people to call on
or relate to or things like that.

So, HR, for example, would have multiple
resources within our HR team to talk through things
with, understand things.  IT, we manage over 400
different facilities, IT solutions.  Point of sale,
the internet, all the way through.  Member billing.
All the way through.  We just have a wealth of
experience.  
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You asked how the existing leadership team

would be impacted.  I would say it would be
enhanced.  I think that when come into a facility, I
showed you our approach, it's not here's what you're
doing now, it's you got quality people, how do we
enhance that, how do we add value to that to get
them to maximize and reach their fullest potential.  

We look at that as enhancing.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  You would actually

provide them more networks opportunities to actually
-- and more sources there.  So, basically, the
general manager you bring us would have good
operations experience in most of these areas and
things.  

Just for the record, our last -- none of
our last four general managers have been engineers,
public works people.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  To be clear, you weren't
asked to bring us a contract, bring us a proposal.
This was an exercise of information gathering
because the Director of HR was directed by the Board
to think differently and come up with some
alternatives for us to consider as a board, because
we have had a difficult time getting quality general
manager candidates for the position.
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And we -- we're going to be losing General

Manager Magee in October, and the Board has to
decide how we want to handle this and what we want
to do going forward.  

So, if there aren't other questions --
Trustee Noble, do you have a question?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I'm ready for the
discussion.  No questions.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Yeah.  I think if we don't
have any other questions for them at this point.
But understand that you weren't tasked with bringing
us a contract or a proposal, it was just investigate
another option, another opportunity.

We thank you for your time and we
appreciate all of the effort that is gone into this
because obviously you have spent a lot of time on
this.  Thank you being here.

TROON:  We appreciate that.  And we did
exactly that.  Our goal here tonight was to shed
some light what we do and how we've developed over
time and evolved or business from primarily being
golf-centric to a little bit more than that today.  

Again, this is not a hard sales pitch at
all.  This is an opportunity for you to look at
something a little bit different, hopefully provide
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some resources that you haven't had in the past, and
we can certainly help as it relates to sourcing
talent, specifically in the position of a general
manager.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  One quick question.  From
your perspective, what would you anticipate the
salary for a general manager to be from -- that you
would source to be here.

TROON:  What we've talked about is in the
range of $250,000 to $300,000 range, based on we
know in the market.  But, again, that is a
conversation that we would have with all of you and
come with the plan that makes the most sense.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Your recommendation --
sorry.  I lost my train of thought.  

But you would have it as a requirement
should the Board elect to say that this person would
have to reside here full time, that would be
something that you would then structure and work
through.

TROON:  We strongly believe in order for
that individual to be successful, they need to be
here full time, yes.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.
TRUSTEE DENT:  I have a question regarding
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the ambitious timeline and being able to utilize the
time we still have with the general manager while
he's here.  What have you guys done in the past when
we have a situation when the contract is going to
take awhile, if we do go in that direction, to
negotiate, but also wanting to download from someone
that's on their way out?

TROON:  From a timeline standpoint, yes,
it's somewhat aggressive.  I will say 90 percent of
our management agreements get done within two to
three weeks.  I'm going to exclude some large
cities.

I think what we would want to do is spend
time with Bobby Magee and leadership and have some
overlap.  Tony Marino that's here, been sitting here
patiently, vice president of operations and runs
point on several facilities.  Part of his role is to
jump in and get an understanding of what the current
situation and get as much feedback and input from
the people that are here.  

And we know we're facing a deadline of
October 6th, and I realize that from looking at some
of the past board meetings.  That's one of reasons I
came up with the proposal that we did and a timeline
to take advantage of that.
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TRUSTEE DENT:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm glad you appreciate

the importance of having the general manager living
in the community.  I'm assuming also, given the last
part of this is recreation/hospitality, it wouldn't
be seen as a Monday to Friday job, local government
job, since our peak periods are really weekends.  

TROON:  We absolutely agree there.  We do
believe in a work/life balance, but we also know
this is 24/7 business.  We've all lived it for
several years.  

You are likely going to be here on
weekends and holidays and special event days.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other questions?
Well, thank you, gentlemen, very much for

your time and for your presentation.
TROON:  Appreciate the Board's time and

appreciate the comments from the community.  Thank
you.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We been requested to take
a short break.  We will come back at 9:25.

(Recess from 9:17 p.m. to 9:25 p.m.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It's 9:25, we'll call the

meeting back to order.  Let's call the meeting back
to order, please.
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We have Director Feore here.  Would the

Board like to weigh in and -- 
First of all, I want to thank you, again,

for all the time and effort that you've put into the
various people that you have talked with.  This was
informative.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  No question.  Just more of
statement.  

Appreciate bringing this forward.  It's
definitely outside the box and different from what
we've done before.  To me, though, it's an absolute
nonstarter by having the GM not be our employee and
the employee Troon.  The allegiance, ultimately,
will be with Troon and not the IVGID Board or this
community.  No matter how much they say and how hard
they try, the ultimate allegiance is to Troon.  

On top of that, it's $250- to $300,000 for
the GM, plus $270,000 a year for Troon, base,
without the incentive, plus travel.  We're looking
at, prospectively, spending about -- over $500,000
for a new GM and the support that that GM is going
to get.  

When I asked the question -- we know what
our problems are.  We have these Moss Adams reports,
we have the facilities reports, we have the food and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 142
beverage report.  We've got our master plans.  We
know what needs to be done.  They're not going to
tell us anything new that needs to be done, that's
why I asked how are they going to -- what are the
solutions that they are going to bring.  I didn't
hear an answer.

And so I don't think see the value that
we're going to get by spending that type of money
for them to tell us what we need to do.  And if we
can't execute it because either the Board isn't
supportive of what needs to be done or we don't have
the personnel to achieve it.  

We need a director of finance, we need a
director of food and beverage, and we need at least
an interim GM and a full-time GM sometime soon.
Until we get those in place and we have a board that
supports staff and gives staff the tools to
executive on all those reports and recommendations
that we have, we will just be spending more money
doing the same exact thing and we're going to be --
the other part that I have concerns with is any
institutional knowledge that they build will go away
with them on the contract.

There's -- at least in the original
proposal, it was a three-year contract with the
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possibility of terminating it after two years.
That, to me, is unconscionable.  Why would we ever
enter an agreement like that that doesn't have an
exit clause by either party if they are not
satisfied with how things are going, regardless of
the term?  

This should have been done -- I would
recommend going out for an RFP.  If we want to see
what other management consultants are out there,
what they could provide, I would be really
interested to see what's out.  

The problem with Troon, and they market
themselves as a club, golf community entity.  And
we're much more than that.  They mention that they
got one little ski area.  And that they
effectively -- they were focused on roads in
Kapalua.  Our two biggest things in IVGID are public
works and ski, and those are major, major pieces.
And that's something they have basically no
experience in.

And my -- if golf operations were in the
gutter, this is might be worthwhile to focus on that
piece, but that's not what our issues are.  We have
a lot of issues across a lot of different
departments, but we know what the problems are.  
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And so I don't think this is the solution.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'll say -- I have some

things to ask you, Trustee Tulloch, so it will be
perfect to follow up.

I will not belabor everything that Trustee
Noble said.  I agree with the majority of it.

I think we have -- we just told all of our
staff during the budget process, stay within your
budget, and now we have just decided to add an
additional $270,000 with a max of close to $412,000.
That seem unconscionable as leaders to be telling
our staff one thing and do something completely
different.  

And then going off of that, I think
there's some other options that we can consider, and
some of them came from public comment, some came
from some research.  We can get the Executive Coach
to do senior leadership and work with a higher GM at
a much cheaper price.  There are organizations like
(inaudible) Hamilton and (inaudible) that will do
that, as well as come in and do some operations for
a few months and help with policies and that kind of
stuff.  

The other myth is, here's another option,
in NRS 318.081, there is an opportunity to have the
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county give us a person to help us with either
finances or operations at a cheaper and discounted
price, to help us work through some of our issues,
at no burden and no, like, them stepping in.  It's
truly they become our employee for a little bit.

I also disagree with our fiduciary duty to
be double paying with Bobby Magee.  I do understand
that there is a need to work with someone, but to
have that big of a cost and double pay there, I
think that is a miss.

I would ask the Board that I would like
to -- and this is more at Trustee Dent -- create a
FlashVote on this item to get some community input.

And then I think the biggest thing -- and
I'm hoping Ray will say this because he brings this
up at almost every meeting -- is why hasn't this
been put out to RFP?  I think this is would be a
great opportunity to put out to RFP.  

And I don't believe, Erin correct me if
I'm wrong.  I know you reached to few, but I did
some Googling, very quick, on organizations, but
there's places like (inaudible), BCG, Human Capital
LSE, Allen and Hamilton, and that was like 30
minutes of Googling, and I think there's a lot that
could do this.  
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And I think we're depriving our community

if this a path that the majority of the Board wants
to take.  I don't necessarily agree with it, but if
is what you want to do, we should put this out to
RFP and do some more research.

MS. FEORE:  I will say that if the Board
directed me to continue working on this to create a
more formal RFP, I'm absolutely open.  This is a
priority of the Board, so it's a priority of mine.
I'm happy to work with anybody who can provide me
with some additional resources.  I am, as you all
know, very wide open to recommendations, so if there
are organization that you would like me to reach out
to be a key point person for, I'm happy to do that.  

I would say that if we do go out to formal
RFP, I think this is only going to be successful
with cooperation with Board in the sense I have
someone with me to help answer the questions that I
cannot answer.  We've heard tonight that Erin Feore
was the sole person who worked on this, and to a
certain extent, the leg work was solely done by me,
based on the direction I received from the Board.
And talked about it, it was throw everything at the
wall to see what sticks, we're not giving you very
specific direction, we want to hear from you, what
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can you bring back to us?  That's what I did.

But when it came time the having the
conversations specifically with the organizations,
or in this case the one organization that I was able
to connect with, it was -- and I want to thank you,
Chair Schmitz, because it was helpful to have a
board presence to say this is what we're working
with, this is what we're talking with.  

My day-to-day operational focus is very
specific.  And, perhaps, I can't speak to the
totality of the Public Works department as a great
example, and so many of you -- I mean, I do that
experience, I know about the operations, but I think
having a board -- somebody from the Board to help to
better articulate some of things we're looking
for -- because you guys know what you're looking
for.  I think I know what you're looking for, but
you're all five very different individuals with very
different opinions on what it is that we need.

That would be my only thing.  If this is
something that the Board decided to do to go out to
formal RFP, I'm in.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  To clarify for the Board,
I answered a lot of questions about things.  And I
think I pointed them to some of the reports and
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where to go find things.  I tried to fill the blanks
a little bit, from a broader board perspective.

MS. FEORE:  That's the resource that I
would need.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are you able tell us --
you reached out to five different management
companies, are you able to tell us what they were?

MS. FEORE:  Yeah.  I a report that I'm
happy to share with the Board or I can make it a
public document, however it needs to be.  I'll leave
that to Sergio to advise.  

But, yes, I have -- I took copious note so
if I was questioned on the work that I did -- the
only thing I would ask is for the individuals that I
reached out to, I would rather have their names
redacted.  

But I kept notes on those conversations.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Yeah.  I don't know why it

couldn't be public information, but if you prefer to
defer that, that's totally fine.  

But I believe you did reach out to
organizations that you felt would fit.

MS. FEORE:  15.  Um-hum.  But I will say
one were those --

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Do you feel you reach
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out to all the management organization that would
fit or goals?

MS. FEORE:  Given more time and if my
bandwidth were a little bigger, I probably have
worked closely -- I will say the least success I had
was coming to this board with one option.  For those
of you who worked with me recruiting initiatives,
you know that I always want to come with at least
three people for you to requester.  And I think that
that puts whoever is ultimately chosen in the best
position to succeed as well.

And so had I -- I also want to respect the
fact that we don't have a lot of time, so I'm trying
to kind of -- I guess I'm trying to figure out how I
can make this work in the constricted time frame
that we have.  If there was more time, I would have
reached out to more, and I would have focused more
on those management companies as well.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And we should thank
Trustee Tulloch for putting into the contract the 90
day.  It could have potentially been less time.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'm going to shock the
audience here.  For once in my life, I'm going to
agree with something both Trustee Noble said and
Trustee Tonking said.  Like Trustee Noble, I do
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share the concerns about mixed loyalties if the
person is not directly employed by IVGID.  There can
be some arrangements around that, but, yeah, I wold
have some concerns about that.

It does open up to wider pool and also
helps with succession planning, though that's the
flip side of it.  

As to Trustee Tonking, yes, I'm a huge
believer in going out to RFP for everything.  I did
say that in my election campaign.  Unfortunately, I
keep getting overrulled, and the biggest culprit is
Public Works.  Well, no, nobody else can do this
except this group.  

And we've created a situation now in
IVGID, most contractors won't actually bid on our
deals because they know it's just going to go to the
same one or two contractors all the time.  It's -- I
still firmly stand by that, and I believe in doing
it.  I can't tell Public Works, I can't tell any
department to do that.  Trustees do not direction in
terms of that.  I can suggest it and will always
look for it.

With regard to the overall approach, yeah,
you can -- I'm quite happy to debate it with anyone
in the audience afterwards in terms of what they
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want.  I say what I think all the time and I take
the flack for it as well.

In terms of the overall proposal, I hear
some of these other firms being suggested, and
having worked for several big four firms and knowing
how it works.  Yes, (inaudible) is great.  They're
doing outsource work in finance and things.  This is
not an outsource firm in finance.  

I also hear, well, we know what needs to
be done.  Well, we've known what needs to be done
for several years, but what have we done about it?
We're pretty poor in execution.  

And that's problem with a lot of those
other firms that are being suggested.  I give Troon
credit, at least they have a track record of
actually executing on these things.  Is Troon the
right firm?  Hard to say.  But what we need is an
execution firm.  

And the same way I've been pointing out,
taking the crisp for it as well, what we need to run
the District is somebody that understand operations.
Out of the last four general managers, have not been
Public Works people or engineers, and public works
is there.

We are facing a major financial borrowing
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because, yes, we spent -- we're borrowing 55 million
bucks against the pipeline, which previous boards
collected money for and never executed.

So, yes, we do have a lot of financial
issues coming up.  We have huge investments, level
of investment coming up.  This isn't a case of,
well, we can just reverse everything.  We can bring
somebody back and everything will be fine again.  We
face huge challenges.  I think it's good that we're
actually looking at other options.  

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I agree.  My concern is we

have limited time, we need to have a general
manager.  We do.  And we have not proven that we
have been able to executive on any of the
recommendations.  

It was so extremely disappointing to see
things that Moss Adams had pointed out in 2020 still
show up in the RubinBrown report.  And we need
assistance in executing.  And I think that our staff
needs additional support.  They need addition
assistance.  I'm not sure that this is the right
approach, but we need to, as a board, acknowledge
that our staff needs some assistance as it comes to
implementing change and addressing some of these
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issue.  

And is Tyler, unfortunately for us, the
Tyler Munis system being so, let's just say
unsuccessful, because that was the word that was
used, that has had a huge impact on the District,
it's had a huge impact on our audit, it's had a huge
impact across the board with internal controls, and
so there's a large void.  And I believe that it's
based upon failure of the Tyler Munis conversion.

I think that we need to to have some
element of overlap with Mr. Magee.  I think that
having an organization that is an execution
organization and operational organization, that has
best practices, they've refined methods, they've
refined processes, that would only help our staff.
Because to try to create things all the time, it's a
lot of work.  And our staff is busy, it's dedicated
and has lots of challenges.  

I think that if we go ahead and say we're
going to hire a GM, just a standalone GM, I think we
have to realistically look at it and say how can we
bring additional assistance and purport in for staff
to effectively implement change.  

I mean, one of the things written up as a
response to the RubinBrown was saying that we're
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going to have a new point of sales system.  My
goodness, that's probably a year and a half to
two years out.  If we had some method or some
ability to more rapidly implement the changes that
are needed and with an organization that has
experience and expertise with these things, I
just -- I mean, I know Mike Gove is working really
hard, but I don't even think we're going to have the
assessment on the point of sale until the end of
this year, and it's an issue that came up in our
RubinBrown report.

I don't have the answer, except to say
what we have done in the past really hasn't -- it's
produced what the RubinBrown report said was just
mismanagement.  We need to change that.  And we need
to either find how we can locate a qualified general
manager that has expertise, experience, because
while you can say, well, it's golf and public works,
we have a huge -- we have a recreation center, a
tennis center, we have two golf courses, we have
parks.  They need to be ready to hit the ground
running and help staff to close these gaps that were
identified in the RubinBrown.  And how do we
accomplish that quickly?  Because I don't personally
want us to be on fiscal watch with the state.  We're
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going to be before the state tomorrow.

So, I understand all of the different
perspectives, and it is not that I disagree, but as
a board, how are we -- what is the suggestion to
effectively move this initiative and move this
effort forward, because we need to.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I did want to clarify
one thing you said.  I would be concerned if
RubinBrown did not fine the same thing Moss Adams
looked at because it was the same time period.  So
if they didn't find those same findings, it would
mean that somebody found something different, and I
wouldn't trust either one of them.  So I'm glad they
found the same things.  

The other point I wanted to make is then
why not put it out to RFP and find a group that
meets all those needs?  You just brought up Tyler
Munis, they don't know how to use Tyler Munis.  You
bring up public works, they don't know public works,
they don't know ski.  They know racket sports and
golf.  

Let's find an organization, then, if
you're saying we need guidance, that offers all of
that.  Let's spend that time.  That's my suggestion.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Building on that, I wanted
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to push back of your characterization of the
RubinBrown report and how frustrated you were
because it covered the same period.  Obviously there
was going to be overlap with Moss and Brown.  I
fully expect that to be.  

The key is what happened after June 30th,
2023?  Bobby Magee came on, Baker Tilly came on, the
finance department was rebuilt after a lot of brain
drain when we lost a lot of people.  And Mr. Magee's
report to us last week stated that 16 of those
observations have already been completed, another 18
are actively being worked on right now.  That is
what happens when we actually have a fully
functioning staff with support from the Board to get
that stuff done.  And that's what we need to do.  

We don't need another consultant to tell
us how we need to do stuff, but don't have the
people to executive it.  Because at the end of the
day, it doesn't matter how many times we're told
what to do and how to do it, unless we have the
personnel in house to actually executive it, it will
never get done.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I am going to hate
myself on this one.  I have to agree with Trustee
Noble on some things, that said just for fun.  
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Yeah, we need to executive.  We need to

get things done.  And we always need to make sure
that both from the Board and from the general
manager, these instructions go down.  I've been
through lots of restructurings as well where you got
something in the utility industry, we used to call a
"pocket veto," where people didn't like what was
being done, so they just objected it not.  I'm
suggesting that has happened here, just before
somebody tried to pin that to me.

We need to have a focus on actually
executing things, and that can't always just be done
by people that's sitting in a manager's job.
Sometimes it needs a tag team to go in and actually
do the execution.  

I think the other thing we've ignored, we
all want to live in the past, IVGID was wonderful in
1961, and so and so knew everybody and this was easy
and it didn't take much to do.  The world has moved
on.  IT systems are becoming very expensive, they've
become a major challenge for a smaller municipality.

We've just spent 60, 70 million on the
pipeline and the storage tank for 6,000 customers.
We have another 55 million-plus to spend in utility.
How do you spread that across a 6,000 customer base?
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It just becomes very difficult.

And I hear these things, well, we're going
to -- if we sign up for this, we're putting a huge
burden on the future boards.  

If we start bonding up the wazoo, we're
putting a huge burden on future boards as well.  I
think we've got to look at the whole picture.  It
becomes very hard for a small municipality like this
to just keep living like it's 1970 or something.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I do -- I felt a little
frustrated in early July that this process might
take awhile.  I know you're overloaded and you guys
have a lot going on.  Thank you for all your efforts
in bringing this proposal forward.

We have been, in my tenure, 8, 9 --
9 years, we keep get reports.  We don't have anyone
to executive, no one to put the plan in place.  We
have everyone that is trying to put the meeting
minutes together, put the agenda items together.
Try to put a contract together.  I mean, two years
into this, and contracts are just being rejected all
the time.  

I feel like we need a team to help us come
in.  The team in front of us, they have golf
operations, food and beverage, sales and marketing,
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accounting and finance, human resources,
procurement, legal, technology, retail, risk
management, racket sports.  Sounds a lot like IVGID.
Sure, they don't have public works.  Sure, they
don't have public works.  

The last three general managers I've
worked with, they didn't have public works
experience, the water flowed, the toilets flushed.
So maybe there's scope of work that gets proposed
doesn't have anything to do with public works.
Maybe it does.  I don't know.

But to say that we need someone that
encompasses all of this, they need to have an
understanding of ski report, understanding to run
public works, there's no one that exists that has
all those background, except Trustee Tulloch over
here.  

The thing is we have an opportunity here,
we can kick the can down the road, community shows
up, recallers show up and they decide to come out
and say, hey, you guys shouldn't do anything.  Don't
do anything.  Let's not do anything.  We know we
have positions that need to be filled, same
conversation we were having last year, let's not do
anything.  Can't you just sit here and kick the can
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down the road again?  

I would be interested in seeing what a
scope of work looks like for this that turns into
some sort of potential working agreement, whether it
somewhere or not.  I feel like if we just ask
Director Feore to go back to the drawing board, it's
going to be six more months and nothing's going to
be done.

And then Public Works is going to come
around next year, and we're going to have a $4- or
$5 million deficit just in rates that are going to
get passed along to the users.  Nothing's going to
change.  

We've had ridiculous costs increases as it
-- community services, Public Works, it's not
sustainable, and we need to try and do something
different to solve the problem.

I don't know what the answer is, but I
feel like this is a step in the right direction.  It
is outside-the-box thinking.  And I feel like if we
don't at least look into this a little bit further,
we're just going to be another six months behind.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Would you mind taking your
conversation out in the hallway?  It's very
distracting.  Thank you.
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TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have a question for my

colleagues, then.  Why would you be willing to put
it out to RFP, and why or why not?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Would any one -- first of
all, I know that you reached out to so many multiple
times.  We can go ahead and do that.  I mean, we can
go ahead and do that.  It's just time.  Yeah.  And
maybe that is the right thing to do.  

But I agree with Trustee Dent.  And I
still will go back, Trustee Noble, and say it is --
it was very, very disconcerting to have internal
control in finance called out in 2020.  And what's
called out in 2024?  Internal controls and our
finances.  It's not a good thing when you've had
four years to take -- four years to make corrections
and those corrections are now thanks Bobby Magee's
staff and the effort that this board put into
supporting what needed to be done in finance,
bringing Baker Tilly in and rest of it, we finally
are getting a little bit caught up, and we're
starting to address some of those issues.  But to
have four years go by with lack of internal controls
in our financial areas is just not okay.  

As it relates to RFP, I mean, that's
something that if the Board wants to do, I don't
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know if anyone said that they were opposed to that,
Trustee Tonking.

MS. FEORE:  Quick question first, just
because along those lines, I -- as you all know, I'm
very much a want-to-get-it-done kind of person, and
if you give me anything, no matter what's on my
plate, I'm going to try to find a way to make that
happen.  

I also want to be at the best service for
the Board.  Am I the right person in our
organization to assist you with this?  

And I know that there had been public
comment that had been made, and obviously I had
received some public feedback that was little bit
critical, wasn't too bad, but a little critical.
And it raised the question.  And I debated as to
whether or not I should say it out loud, but at the
end of the day, the success of this organization
means everything to me.  If I'm given the
opportunity to work here until I retire, I would
love that opportunity.

And so I also want to make sure that I'm
the right person to assist the Board with this.  If
the Board says yes, I'm in a hundred percent.

But if there's some other ideas regarding
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that as well, I wanted the Board to know that I
would be open to that and not at all offended by any
stretch of the imagination.

I needed to say that out loud so that I'm
also being very open and honest and transparent.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm very sorry that you
have had to be on the receiving end of community
members' less than appreciative toward your efforts.

MS. FEORE:  I will say it because I want
to be very fair about this, it's not the first time
I've had people contact me before.  I've also had
some supportive community members came out and say,
We understand this was the direction you were given
by the Board.  

I've had both.  But I think -- I'm never
the kind of person to throw the baby out with the
bath water, and so I want to listen to those
criticisms and bring them to light in case there are
some other suggestions and there is another way of
doing this.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I'll just go back to --
adding to what our HR director was saying.  We had
individuals that were interested in coming to work
here, and then those individuals are then being
hunted in their towns and their companies and
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withdrawing their names.

The fact that Troon actually came in for
the presentation was a little surprising to me.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Director Feore, you've
done a good job.  I think it's important that you --
it's not the role of the Board to be executing
operating tasks like that.  It's the job of the
Board to give you guidance.  I appreciate the work
you've done on it, the independence, despite the
audience comments.  

I've not been involved in any of these
negotiations or discussions in terms of that.  Just
to clarify.  Thank you for the job you've done.
I'll agree with what Trustee Dent said, we brought
somebody to the dance floor.  Others have not
responded.

Again if so, as I said before, it's not
just a classic range of looking at -- I'll use the
old word, the classic outsources like (inaudible)
Allen or (inaudible) that deal with particular
things.  This is an operations and execution-type
role.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I think that -- I want to
ask the Board if there's an interest in, perhaps,
asked Troon to refine their plan to potentially
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change things like they become an IVGID employee,
because I understand the concern of that as well,
and potentially having some sort of an interim-type
situation.

I think that we need to have someone at
the helm, and I think that we do need to have some
additional resources for staff to assist in getting
over some of these hurdles.  And I'll use the point
of sales system as another one because it's an issue
for, not only the finance department, but also the
frontline staff.  It's not -- it's very old and it's
not integrated with any of other systems.  

I'm just wondering if there's some sort of
an inquiry or compromise like we would like to talk
about.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I think you absolutely
have to put this out for an RFP.  I mean, this is
our one position that we're in charge of, and to
have it present like this and go down this road with
Troon without canvassing it out there, putting it
out there beyond just making phone calls to see what
else is out there, I think it would be dereliction
of duty on our part that we don't do an RFP.  

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I think you're doing a
disservice to this community without doing an RFP.
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I think we had all these people come out and tell us
they didn't agree.  I had Troon tell me they were
unqualified.  

If Troon wants to bid and no one else
bids, then fine, but do the process right.

I have a question for Director Feore:
What, in your professional opinion, would you
recommend doing?

MS. FEORE:  I want to be respectful of the
time constraints, but in my professional opinion, I
know this is a very important role and this a very
important service to the Board, and I would also not
want to see the can kicked, but I also think that --
I would certainly feel, I've said this before, more
comfortable if I was able to provide you with
additional companies so that you can make a more
educated decision.

And, again, this kind of goes back to my
recruitment experience.  I'd never come to you with
just one applicant.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  You tried very hard.
MS. FEORE:  I did.  
But if the Board does direct that we do a

more formal RFP, I will invite any recommendations
from the subordinate and as it relates to
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organizations that you feel may provide the services
that the District needs.  

I also want to thank Troon for coming out.
Working with Joe Goodrich and his team, they are
incredible people, and they did do a lot of work to
present tonight.  I think if they were in here, they
would also agree, yes, we want to be the best of the
best.  We don't want you just to choose us just
because we're the only people that stepped up.

So, in my professional experience, I would
prefer to come back to you with additional
resources.  Again, I want to be respectful of the
time as well.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  What's the consensus of
the Board?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Director Feore, what's
the likely time skill for an RFP and how long did
Troon have to prepare this and what length of time
should put in -- time skill if it out to RFP?

MS. FEORE:  I'd have to go back to my
notes to see when I first started working them, but
I believe it was three weeks, two to three weeks, I
believe.  It was -- I had reached out to them, they
had touched base with me, but I didn't start really
speaking with them after the July 10th meeting.
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Follow-up question for

general counsel.  In the previous search for a
general manager, the Board was not allowed to see
all the applicants.  All we saw was the sanitized
list that was passed to us.  Out of 15, 16
applicants, we only got to see about four.  

I'm assuming if we go out to RFP, we'd see
all the responses?

MR. RUDIN:  Yeah, you would.
With respect to the search for an

individual of a general manager, there's an Open
Meeting Law restriction that you can't make those
decisions or participate in them except for a
noticed public meeting.  

However, after the -- so, if you were
appointing an individual after that process is
complete, you could potentially review it
afterwards, and review whatever procurement or
solicitation was done for a general manager to
ensure that you're comfortable with the process that
took place.  

Again, that would be after you've
completed whatever process you choose to select your
general manager because of the restriction of Open
Meeting Law.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 105 of 271



 169
I do have -- another question for the

Board is the staff report does identify individuals
who have expressed interest.  If there is direction
given to the human resources director about pursuing
that path, does the Board want to open up a more
open solicitation or advertisement for a general
manager position, either on an interim or permanent
basis?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I think that's a great
idea.  I think the more options, the better.

We are year past the last time we went
through this process, and maybe this time it will
work.  If not, we'd have the other option with
various -- the RFP for the management services
piece.  

But I'd like to see both options because
more options is good.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I would agree with that.
I don't think that -- paying for executive
recruiting firm, it didn't work.

So if we -- if it isn't too much effort
for staff to have two paths and post and actually
advertise for hiring a GM, because the cost of
hiring a firm because they're bringing more to the
table, it is going to cost us more, but you're
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getting, potentially, more as well because you've
got the backdrop of all of the resources.

But I just -- it's a shame this is taking
so long, and some of it is because of Open Meeting
Law as well.  It takes time to put materials
together and what not.  I'm concerned about that,
because Mr. Magee will be gone.  And I know
Mr. Bandelin has helped us out in the past, but
situations with him have changed.

TRUSTEE DENT:  I think we've been dancing
around this general manager option for over a year,
and I do like the firm approach.  I didn't know
where this was going on when we discussed it last
with Director Feore, but feel like this could be an
option that could actually help and move it forward.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I agree.  And, personally,
I liked what Troon was bringing to the table.  I
liked the fact they had all of the food and
beverage, and they had industry benchmarks and
here's what it should be, here's what your overhead
should be.  I mean, that's helpful for staff, it is.

I do think that there is value in having
the firm approach, at least period of time.  And
then maybe in two years everything will be running
really smoothly and our budgets will be more in line
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and our costs and revenues, and it will have
improved, and maybe at that point in time we can fly
with just a GM.

MS. FEORE:  If I can as a clarifying
question when it speaks to potential individual as a
GM, are we looking to source a permanent solution or
an interim solution in a more immediate approach?
Kind of like how Troon had indicated that they would
get somebody in right away to assist and then work
with the new board on it for a permanent solution.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I think we would be
looking for permanent.  Yeah.  I think Troon was
doing it to try to have as much overlap as possible
to not miss a beat, and then have a person, hand it
off to another person.  

That's how I was interpreting what they
were proposing.  But if we were going out, we would
be looking for a full-time general manager.

MS. FEORE:  Would I be safe in presuming
that the need for business acumen is as it was at
this time last year when we were talking about some
of the skill sets we were looking for?  We want
somebody to have a strong background in business as
well as, potentially, a governmental background as
well.
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CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Hospitality business.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  That's all -- I'd rather

have it open that it is recommended but not
mandatory, because they may bring a different skill
set that we're not aware of.  I would like to have
it as an either or or inclusive, but I don't want to
discount anybody.  We can do that ourselves in
reviewing that, whether or not we think that's the
appropriate person.  

I don't want to limit it so much that we
don't get a qualified candidate.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, I think it's even
more critical, what we've seen in the audit report
and everything, it just highlights the need for
that.  

And I think different perspective offered
by Troon also highlights the need for thinking
outside the box in terms of that.  Just doing
something a little bit different.  They correctly
identified the need for somebody that's really
focused on the operations that we run and actually
being there to support them.  

To me, that's still a critical part of it.
MS. FEORE:  As it relates to scope of

work, is this something that this board is
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comfortable with me putting together based on all
the feedback I received, or would you prefer to have
some input on the scope of work?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  For the RFP, I think --
I can't speak for my colleagues, I'm happy to
provide some input in terms of the scope.  I think
what we've seen from Troon has actually been helpful
for that.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  Is there a way to
provide input just to Erin or legal or individually?
Or do you need it --

MR. RUDIN:  The issue there is if you're
all providing input, that's likely going to be an
Open Meeting Law violation.

What the Board can do is designate one or
two trustees to review and provide their input on
what the scope of work should be.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  I recommend that it
would be Dave and Ray, since they are both the ones
who will be on the Board.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We can't have two, that's
an Open Meeting Law violation.  Can't have two.

MR. RUDIN:  I guess one, yeah.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm fine with -- do you

want to do it, Ray?
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TRUSTEE TONKING:  I would also like to

suggest Dave as another option.  I think it's -- he
knows contracts.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I've got a lot of time
right now.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do you both want to do it?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I'd really like to do it.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do we need to take a vote,

then?
MR. RUDIN:  Sure.  Not -- yeah, if you're

going to have a dispute over who --
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Well, we have two willing

people.
MR. RUDIN:  You need to pick one.
TRUSTEE DENT:  Why don't you pick one, and

then why doesn't that one that you pick then go
discuss it with the other one?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That wasn't stated.
(Cross talk.)
MR. RUDIN:  I think it would be better if

the Board just selects one person to provide
feedback on solicitation.

Otherwise, Erin can bring something back
at the next meeting, if it's ready for presentation
by then.
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CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do you want me to just

pick one?  I'll go ahead if the Board's comfortable
with me picking one.  Otherwise, we're going to have
to vote.  

All right.  Well, I'm going to ask Trustee
Noble to -- since he's got so much time on his
hands, to keep this moving forward, because we need
it going forward.  We need it.

MS. FEORE:  That's it.  Okay.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We're going to do, though,

a dual track.  We're going to go ahead and post the
general manager's potion, and we -- then we want to
do an RFP, but I think we need to make these
timelines pretty tight because we need to make some
decisions and we need to move this forward.

So, you know, as tight as things can be, I
think, we need to do it.

MS. FEORE:  I've not work with this board
on an RFP for professional services.  

Sergio, maybe this is more of a question
for you.  Does the RFP itself need come back to the
Board for approval before it's sent out, or are we
-- I mean, I had worked previously with General
Manager Magee who had walked me through an RFP
process, so I could certainly bug him for some
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guidance there as well.

But if I'm able to, I'm happy to come back
at the August 28th meeting, if nothing else to --
no?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I was going to say, do we
need to have a special meeting before the 28th,
that's another four weeks.  So, we have to move
faster than that is my feeling.

MS. FEORE:  If we have a meeting on the
28th, that means all of the information that I have
available for the Board has to be published by the
23rd, which gives me two weeks.  I could just do a
verbal report, yeah.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  When can you get an RFP?
How long does it take to put an RFP out?

MR. RUDIN:  The key is developing the
scope of services we are requesting.

There's no statutory requirement that it
be provided to the Board for prior approval before
it goes out.  That being said, it's the pleasure of
the Board as to whether or not you want to require
that.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  My feeling of the Board is
that we need to move this along, quick.  Coming to
the Board with an RFP on the 28th, that's a loss of
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a month already, it's four weeks.  

So if Trustee Noble has been assigned to
work with you, I would just say go ahead and work on
it, develop it, and get it out there.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would have a
difference of opinion on that.  We've heard how
important this is to the community, I think it's
important that the Board sees it -- whether it needs
a special meeting or not, I think that's an
important part of transparency.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We can schedule a special
meeting.  I personally don't think this can wait
until the 28th.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I agree with that.
MS. FEORE:  It's not going to take me

two weeks to build the actual RFP, especially once
I've worked with Trustee Noble to develop the scope
of work.  I would ask for at least a full week to
get this together, especially with some of the other
things that I have going on right now that are high
priority as well.

Do we want to look at week of the 19th?
And would that be in place of the 28th?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  No, it would just be a
special meeting just for this.  
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But I know there was travel between

Trustee Dent and Trustee Tonking.
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I can make something

work.  I can always just Zoom in.
(Cross talk.)
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  We have a CIC meeting

scheduled for the 20th, we can actually do them
both, same day.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Let's try to do that.
MS. FEORE:  Because I am going to come

back to the Board with the RFP, that gives me a week
and a half to put together the RFP.  It's tight, but
I can do it, I can sleep less.  It's fine.

I will plan, then -- what date were we
looking at?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Sometime the week of the
19th.  It's Tuesday, and we can piggyback and the
setups are less for IT, on the 20th.

And if it has to be supplemental material,
we understand.

MS. FEORE:  But what I will do is,
immediately, as of tomorrow, start the GM posting.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you very much.
G 2.  EXL Media  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on to general
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business G 2, review, discuss, and possibly approve
an agreement with EXL Media for district media
buying services.  Requesting is communications
manager Paul Raymore, pages 44 through 79 in the
board packet.

MR. RAYMORE:  On pages 44 through 53 in
your board packet is a memo and proposed agreement
with EXL Media for the District's paid advertising
services for the 2024/2025 fiscal year.  Then also
attached on pages 54 through 79 are supporting
documents, including budgeting and actuals for paid
media spending since the 2019 fiscal year, as well
as some campaign reports from EXL Medial from this
season's campaigns.  

I'm here with Wendy Hummer, president of
EXL Media, who will walk you through a brief
presentation of the District's advertising campaign
results from this current fiscal year.  This was
material added as supplemental materials to the
board packet.  

And after that, we will both be available
to answer any questions you may have.

MS. HUMMER:  Hi, everyone.  Thank you.
We're going to go through Diamond Peak

facilities and golf.  Starting with Diamond Peak,
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what you're seeing here is a report for
October through April of this fiscal.  This is
season pass and full season combined.  The cash
investment was just over 155,000 for media,
specifically.  Trade was 25,000.  And the value that
we were able to secure was 220,000, which is about a
23 percent additional value against spend.  And you
guys recall, your budget is a spend up to, so we
were a little bit under on that.

The season pass campaigns we ran in the
fall.  We did take a break between December and
October -- well, basically in November and half of
December, and we launched when the resort opened
because we get more sales then.  And then the spring
pass sale went through the end of April.  

Our total spent was 24,000.  The digital
media spend, which was most of it, was 20,000.  And
the revenue that we generated online was 282,000,
which is a 14 to 1 return on add spend.

The fall revenue was up from the
prior year, 7.5 percent, and the RAOS improved by
$8.  

The spring sale, the revenue was down a
bit, 12 percent, and the ROAS went from 23 to 17.
The reason for this, as all know, the season before
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was quite larger, you guys were open a little bit
longer, and there was a lot more snowpack.  We had a
late season this year.  I think it started in
February, basically.  And that also shows you the
media channel.

The regular season, the media spend was
156.  You can see the percent of cash and trade.
Our target markets are Reno, Lake Tahoe, Truckee,
Bay Area, and Sacramento.  We break down the medial
channel spent by percent.  We did one little
billboard on I-80, some radio print, digital, and
Hulu.  The radio was mostly trade.

We can measure the digital, we can
measure -- I'll get to in a bit, but this gives you
a little bit of information on the campaign results.
We had over 3,000 social media engagements on the
platforms from the paid media.  We have over 81,000
completed video views.  94,000 website session
visits, which was 16 percent of the total Diamond
Peak website.  The click-through rate for Diamond
Peak on Google was 20 percent, that's against the
travel industry benchmark of 9 percent, and our cost
per click was 52 percent against 1.63.  I know often
people want to know who this compares to the
industry, so we're well above that, and you can see
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the breakdown of the different digital media buys.

Then we lost revenue tracking on the site
between, basically, 1/11, 1/12.  January 12th and
March 5th, there was no revenue tracking.  So what
were able to do is pull when we did have revenue
tracking on the site, look at the digital spend
against that.  We spent just an about 43,000 on
digital media, and we generated 651,000 in online
revenue, which was a return on investment of $15.
That was down for that same period of last year
about 3 percent.  And paul shared the total website
for the season compared to last year, and it was
down 3 percent.  We were pretty right on for this
period, right on for the full season of that
decline.  Again, that's just a difference in that
extended season we had last year with all the
snowpack.

One thing we initiated this year was a
powder alert campaign, so when it looked like or
when we were getting a foot or more of snow, we ran
a powder alert on the Colfax digital billboard here
on I-80.  We also ran it on Facebook and YouTube and
Instagram, basically saying powder and come.  What
saw from that is we generated 1,100 in revenue, we
had over 21,000 video views, and social engagements
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of 386.

Our billboard that we did buy, which we
haven't done in awhile, we spent 6,000 on it, and
the value of it was 8,000.  I was able to get the --
in Colfax, there was two digital boards, and I was
able to get the one in front of it for bonus, and I
also worked to get a lot of bonus rotations on it.
We were able to receive almost, like, 300 percent
value against spend in negotiation.

Then this just, quickly, other media that
we did.  Hulu, Pandora we ran in the Bay Area, and
with those, we're able to target just skiers and
borders, versus trying to reach, like, radio and TV
normally.  That's a good thing with digital TV and
radios, you can target just skiers in the Bay area.
That was the ski.  

The facilities, that is an annual campaign
where we promote weddings.  We spend about 25,000,
mostly on wedding sites, Instagram, (inaudible), and
Google ads.  We were able to secure 585 wedding
leads, which is about 64 percent of the total
website leads.  Leads are up 18 percent from
last year with a flat spend, and our cost per lead
improved from $49 to 44.  

One specific campaign we tried to with
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them is we realized with the industry trends and
working with the other clients at large weddings are
not getting booked, they are way down, so we wanted
to promote the smaller weddings at Aspen.  We ran a
specific paid search campaign in March and June.  It
was really successful.  We were able to generate 39
percent of the leads in March and June were for just
Aspen Grove.

I do want to note that this budget was cut
in the '24/'25 fiscal, so you will probably, about
33 percent, so that 585 leads will probably drop by
about 190, 200 leads.

In working with other -- I can give an
example of another client we have in Tahoe where
they cut back -- when COVID hit, there was a big
surge in wedding leads, a lot of people wanted to
get marred that were not able to get married, so a
lot of pulled back on their advertising saying we
have enough wedding leads.  What they saw in the
last 14 months is their leads dropped so much that
they had a lot of openings, and now they're actually
growing that wedding spend versus dropping it, just
to see what other people are doing in the area.

And then golf, we haven't ran golf in
awhile since COVID.  We do this campaign in early
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June.  It's still run a little bit, but we provided
the report through July 31st.  We ran social media,
Google ads, and then we geofenced all the competing
golf courses in the Lake Tahoe area, so when people
were there golfing, they would see Incline golf
coming across on their cell phones.  

We had almost 1,900 engagements on social
media.  And then 350 click-outs to book the tee
times at a cost per lead or click-out of $25.  The
website users for the golf Incline landing page was
up 51 percent from last year for the same time
period, and that came from the paid campaign.  As
you will see, both direct and organic search were
down from last year.  If we hadn't ran this
campaign, your website sessions and click-outs would
have been down.  It definitely changed that around
for you guys.

And then it also represented 41 percent of
the website users, which is quite a bit considering
how many residents you have here that 41 percent
were coming from the Bay Area and Reno and Sacrament
to book golf.  And we mentioned the geofence
campaign.

That's it.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Questions?
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just I have interest,

what's the conversion rate from leads to sales for
both the areas that identified?  You gives us a cost
per lead, but what's the conversion rates from these
leads?  

MR. RAYMORE:  On to golf side and
throughout the Vermont online, ecommerce engine, we
don't have the tracking all the way through sales,
so we can't say.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Did I hear you correctly
that the cost per ad for golf was $25?

MS. HUMMER:  No.  Cost per somebody going
to the site and then to click out to book a tee time
was $25 for a click-out.  They went to your site,
they decided to click out to book a golf time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That really cuts into our
profit margin at $25.  

My other question is when -- can you put
your presentation back up again?  

My question is, sorry, but I don't
understand how it is that you said -- I don't know,
with the billboard, that it equated to X number of
dollars of revenue.  How do you get information to
say we received revenue from billboard?  How in the
world do you get it for any of these things when you
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say you have so many impressions and then that means
that it resulted in so much in sales.  How do you
actually have that -- tie those things together?

MS. HUMMER:  This is the -- the 111 is
from the Facebook Instagram, YouTube.  That's
generated on the GA4 report that they saw the social
media, they clicked through, and they booked
tickets -- lift tickets for the outdoor, in order
for us to track revenue, we would have to bring in a
third party to do attribution modeling with a
different vendor.  We don't have that for the
billboard.

The one thing that we know how to
generate, the impressions on the billboard is that
the Outdoor Association of America has an auditing
system that we use that validates eyes on digital
billboards and how much are actually delivered by
people passing by, and they use their cell phones to
track those impressions.  Same with digital media,
it's all audited by these industry people, making
sure that what we buy is what we're getting.  

So if we contract 429,000 impressions, we
know that we got 1.2 million impressions from this
auditing system, and they're using the cell phone
passerbys.
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CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other questions?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I'm looking at your

facilities and weddings.  You were saying that --
because it's $45 for leads, which feels a little
high to me looking at that, I feel that it's a
decrease from 49.  

I think you said about people were
spending more in that area now.  I missed the slide.

MS. HUMMER:  Actually, we probably have
four or five different wedding clients and 44 is
actually really strong.  This is somebody filling
out a lead to request a wedding.  If you actually
book a wedding against the $44 lead, that's a pretty
good return on investment.

So what I was saying is what happened when
COVID hit, a lot of people couldn't get married.
Their wedded plans were canceled.  There was a big
surge in weddings everywhere, and so people were
pulling back on advertising.  Then what happened in
the last months, especially large weddings, have
gone on the decline.  

We have a lot of clients where their
weddings have dropped 70 percent, 30 percent, and
they're not getting those leads.  Now they are
ramping up those budgets today get those people
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back, and a lot of what we're seeing is that smaller
weddings.  That's why Paul had the idea of let's try
to promote Aspen Grove and grab those people who are
going after the smaller weddings.  And I think it
paid off.

In terms of tracking those leads to
weddings, we would have to have a system that would
track that from GA4, by day, and then talk to the
wedding department to see what came to fruition.
But they do say they do pretty well from the wedding
site and the website.

MR. SANDS:  If I can tack on real quick.
The thing we're seeing on the uptick, the uptick is
that our bookings for weddings and events have gone
from maybe 100 to 120 to now 150 to 250 people.

So everything that is now trending forward
is really beneficial to us in general.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  If I can come back to a
previous question, a cost per lead is 44, but what's
the conversion rate?  I mean, if it's a hundred
percent conversion rate, that's brilliant.  At zero
percent it's been meaningless.  

That's what I am trying to get my head
around, what it's costing us.

MR. SANDS:  Absolutely.  
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But the big picture is now if we look at

it at a macro with advertising, we have to have
advertising within the market because it's such a
competitive market.  And if we are not in that
space, we're not going to be able to book the amount
of parties we would want to book.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yep.  It makes total
sense.  I'm still just interested in what the
conversion rate is, because, otherwise, the cost per
lead is not really telling us anything.  That's why
I'm curious about the conversion rate.

MR. SANDS:  No.  And I'm -- will work with
director Paul to make sure that whatever we are
spending is actually going to the right departments,
because we are not going to spend money that does
not make us money.

MS. HUMMER:  If we can link the GA for our
leads to a CRM database, then we can look at that
conversion rate towards the wedding.  There's a lot
of factors involved: the time, the group, the size,
where they want to get married, if they want to
bring in their F and B they can't.

We can see if there's any way to link it.
We're doing that with other wedding clients, but on
a much larger scale with a larger budget.  
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Here's a very simple

way:  You get 585 leads, let's just look at a
two-year period or something, how many wedding did
we do over that.  I know it's a very rough one and
you won't like it because it's not digital or
anything, but it gives a back-of-the-envelope
calculation.

MR. RAYMORE:  I can't speak to exactly how
many weddings we did over this time period, but I
have done that math in the past.  I didn't include
it in this packet.  I'd say that $44 is a very
attractive --

MR. SANDS:  Mr. Raymore, Mr. Raymore, I
will jump in and address Trustee Tulloch's comments.
Here's the big picture.  We are always going to
operate and be efficient in weddings and events,
whether it's golf tournaments, it's non-residents,
we are going to make sure that golf operations and
food and beverage in the summertime run at a proper
profit and loss expectation.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That's exactly what I
would expect, but unfortunately I'm kind of a
show-me kind of guy.  I appreciate your input.

MS. HUMMER:  I can tell this cost per lead
is lower than three other clients I work with in
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Tahoe on weddings.

MR. SANDS:  Absolutely.  Absolutely.
MS. HUMMER:  I just can't share who they

are, what it is, because they are private companies.
MR. RAYMORE:  Again, I think average

revenue we're looking at for the events that we are
advertising for is in the $12- to $15,000 range.  So
these are the money-making, profit-generating events
at The Chateau.  These are high-end weddings that we
are trying to sell.  

We were very comfortable with the $44 cost
per lead.  I think it could be much higher than that
and still be in the ballpark where we're generating
profit.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I look to forward to
seeing that in the next budget in that case.  

If I can jump to something else, I noticed
you haven't broken out the agency fee separately
this time from the cost of ads.  What is the agency
fee percentage in that total on the board memo?

MR. RAYMORE:  There is a not exceed total
amount in the contract.  It shows not to break it
out specifically so that we had more flexibility in
terms of how we're spending ad dollars and agency
fee dollars, essentially giving us the flexibility

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 111 of 271



 193
to spend more on paid advertising if we choose to
request less in terms of reporting in other
fee-generating activities from EXL Media.  

As -- if you remember last year's
presentation, Trustee Schmitz had asked me why we
had fees for golf without any actual golf
advertising.  I'm hoping that budgeting this way
will give us the flexibility to pay for what fees
and what services we need without constraining our
budget to only pay for fees.

So, if we have money left over because we
haven't asked as much of them in terms of reporting
and the duties they do, that can go toward paid
advertising and paid media.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Understood.  And I
appreciate the flexibility.  I'm just trying to work
out whether the increased spend here is just as a
result of increased agency fees or whether we're
actually getting for ads for our money.

MR. SANDS:  Well, we're also trying to
make sure we operate within the budgetary
constraints that we've been given for this year.  So
everything that we're trying to do is within our
budgetary constraints to make sure we operate in a
very proficient manner.
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TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yes, I appreciate that.

I'm just looking at the big picture.  Does this
increase in spend due to increased agency fees, or
is it actually driving up --

MR. SANDS:  Not at all.  Not at all.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That's why I'm asking

for the transparency.
MR. SANDS:  Not at all.
MR. RAYMORE:  The increased budget numbers

are most due to the $10,000 increase in the trade
budget that was authorized this year for Diamond
Peak.  We went from 40,000 to 50,000 in terms of
trade value that we're able to, potentially,
utilize.  

As Wendy's presentation showed, I think we
utilize 225,000 in trade value -- 

MR. SANDS:  Thank you, Paul.
MR. RAYMORE:  -- last year.  I don't

necessarily expect we'll be able to utilize all
50,000 of that value, but it's there as a cash
alternative when we can use it.  We often use that
for a little bit of radio.

But essentially, I guess, keeping
everything into one budget is how it is budgeted in
the back end.  There's one account for paid media
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where both the paid media ads and fees come out of.
And so trying to present it this way was just trying
to model that back end budget and also give us the
flexibility to assign the fees to the right
department that is using them.

If they are doing a lot of work for golf,
the fees are going to come out of that golf spend
and that golf account.  If they're doing most of
their work for Diamond Peak, they will come out of
the Diamond Peak spend.  

But we still a not to exceed amount in the
contract, based on estimated hours, total hours,
that EXL Media feels they will spend at the maximum
over the course of the fiscal year.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Understood.  But if you
broke it out, you would still show the fees and
spend against each venue as well, wouldn't you?
Because you must be doing that to actually track it
against the venues.  

I'll leave it there.
MR. RAYMORE:  Yes.  But I didn't want to

be constrained by what I put in the report in terms
of spending that money on fees if it was -- it could
be utilized for paid media.

MS. HUMMER:  I think, having been set
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upfront, it gets billed as it get occurred.  It gets
assigned to a department as we using is, versus
setting a fee at the beginning and then we don't use
it.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  What's the fee percentage
that's being charged?

MR. SANDS:  Look -- can we simplify it a
little bit more than that?  Because, essentially, we
have a crossover interdepartmental fee structure, so
myself in golf then incurs something that comes from
ski operations.  If we don't understand the full
scope of what that interdepartmental fee is, we
really don't know where me stand, and that's what
we're working on.

MR. RUDIN:  The contract that is in your
agenda packet provides that EXL is paid based on
an hourly rate of $130 an hour.  The compensation
for that is 55,120.  For the media purchase budget,
it's 238,146 in cash and 50 K in trade.  

The contract does specify that there are
specific media purchases -- budgets per event -- or
sorry -- per venue, for -- 

MR. SANDS:  Yep.
MR. RUDIN:  -- Diamond Peak, 108,000.  For

golf courses, it's 13,000.  For facilities, it's
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almost 17,000.  

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That's helpful.  
MR. SANDS:  Very much so helpful.  But in

the same moment, there's a little bit of encumbrance
that comes with salaried employees versus hourly
employees; correct?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  This is just
advertising.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I think we might be
talking about two different subjects.  

We're talking about what is the percentage
of fee that EXL Media is charging us to do their
digital promotions, and we're trying to understand
what that percent is.  And if it's just based on
hours, well, what's the ratio of hourly time versus
actual ads that are being produced?  And it doesn't
seem to lay that out clearly.

MR. RAYMORE:  Doing some quick math with
the numbers in the contract, if we were to go up to
that total not to exceed amount of 55,120 and then
spend the entire budget, it would be 19 percent.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That's even higher
percentage than last year.  I mean, last year, I
think it was 16 percent.  So now it's 19 percent.
16 percent was even over the industry standard based
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on our research last year.

MR. SANDS:  Well, we can also equate a 3
percent COLA enhancement, and also, you know, merit,
and a -- sorry.

MS. HUMMER:  Agency 15 percent commission,
as we explained last year, is an old calculation
because we do much more than just place media.  We
work on analytics and reporting and promotions and
things that don't always have a dollar amount.  

That percent that we had discussed
last year, I had explained that 99 percent of the
media companies out there are on hourly rates or
retainers.  We used be on a retainer and we switched
it to this hourly, not to exceed, after COVID.  

But media doesn't even charge on a
commission basis anymore.  A $500 ad in the Tribune
could take more time than a $10,000 ad on somewhere
else.  So it's based on our time, and so much of it
is not against a media placement.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  My question, then, is at
$130 per hour, that's including your fee and then
the time -- or is that -- 

MS. HUMMER:  It includes all our time and
expenses.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  So it's everything.
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MS. HUMMER:  Except what we pay the

vendors.  The net cost to the vendors is in media.
All of our time and expenses based on that 130.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  What do you see agency
-- like, what do we see industry-wide happening
around, is it always lumped in at this hourly rate?

MS. HUMMER:  Typically, agencies are
charging based on -- like if it's an owner like me,
they may be charging 300 an hour, they may be
charging their billing person -- we're well below
most agencies in Reno.  If you look at it, they are
well above $200 an hour.

Most my clients right now are around $140
to $200 an hour.  You're probably one of our
lowest hourly rates just because we just raised it
from 120 last year.  And the time, the fee is what
we base our time on and trying to optimize it as
much as we can.

MR. SANDS:  So as IVGID, and when we look
at an all-encompassing management fee, we're looking
at hundreds of thousands of dollars.  It's
unbelievable.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other questions?
Okay.  No other questions here or comments?

Does anyone care to make a motion?
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TRUSTEE TONKING:  I move that the Board

approve the contract with EXL Media as laid out in
the memo.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Aye.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE DENT:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Opposed?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Abstain.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The motion passes.
I want to take just a really -- can I make

a really quick break?  Give me just two minutes.
Okay?  Thank you.

(Recess from 10:49 p.m. to 10:52 p.m.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will call the meeting

back to order.  Thank you for the brief break.  
Moving on to what was agenda item -- the

board reports, agenda item E.  
E.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  This is the General
Manager's report.  We received supplemental
information from IT, Director of Admin Services, and
finance that were attached as supplemental material.  
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Are there any questions for the General

Manager on any of the submitted monthly reports?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I have one question, and

I hadn't heard this, we heard it in public comment,
and then I actually saw it on my email today, my
personal email that we're going to before the
Department of Taxation tomorrow.  

Can you speak to that?
MR. MAGEE:  Sure.  Yes, we are -- we do

have a planned appearance before the Committee on
Local Government Finance tomorrow morning.  It is my
understanding, really, all that they wanted to talk
to us about was the results of and observations of
the forensic due diligence audit.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  In that, will you also
be discussing the -- what you've done since that
happened, the memo that you sent to us?

MR. MAGEE:  If called upon, I can
certainly do that.  Obviously, it's their meeting
and I am prepared to speak to that, if that's what
they ask me.  For sure.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  We keep hearing that we
have not reconciled or bank balances.  Can you
confirm that those have been reconciled?

MR. MAGEE:  Yes, they've been reconciled.  
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Now, I understand that people have a

different definition of what reconciled means.  The
work as been completed.  It is not reconciled to the
penny as of the reconciliation.  These things
happen.  There is always a number of items that
require a little bit of additional research.  

And so when some members of the community
want to say the work hasn't been done, that's not
accurate.  The work has been done, and these are
usually just timing issues, for the most part, and
finance department works their way through them and
move on to the next one.

As of right now, yes, we're caught up.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We're you asking about the

bank reconciliations?  
TRUSTEE TONKING:  Yes.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.  Any other

questions?  
If I may, I want to dovetail on Trustee

Tonking's.  Just to remind the Board, the -- when we
went before the Department of Taxation relative to
the audit findings, they had already put that on
their agenda for August.  That was something that
was planned.  They had wanted the report to be
brought to them.
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Relative to the $7 million imbalance, if I

read your report correctly, that is still work in
progress, trying to close that gap of information
and -- is that correct?  How big is the gap now?  

MR. MAGEE:  No.  The general ledger is in
balance, and it has been for sometime.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The $7 million imbalance
has been resolved?

MR. MAGEE:  We are fully reconciled, yes.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.
I would like an explanation, if you could

for us, because in Director Nelson's report on
page 11 of 85, she talks about the recent hiring
freeze.  

I'm not aware of any sort of recent hiring
freeze.  And the Board specifically budgeted for the
necessary positions in Public Works, that we were
ensured that the projects were going to be done in a
timely manner.  

I'm a bit puzzled about what this is
referring to, this hiring freeze, and the impact to
our projects.

MR. MAGEE:  Sure.  And thank you for in
question.  

The Board has -- just for clarity, the
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Board has not instituted a hiring freeze.  Only the
Board would have that authority to do that.  I've
used that as slang inside of the directors'
meetings, and I apologize for that.  

The point of it was is that each request
for sending a position out for recruitment was going
to be highly scrutinized to make sure that it was
within Board's direction, and that there was both
existing appropriations for this year and ongoing
funding.  And then we wanted to make sure that this
made sense moving forward, with any of these.  

I think there's is only one position that
I have rejected so far.  Everything else has gone
through this process.  It's a little bit of an
intense process, but we want to make sure that we're
in full compliance with Board direction.  

Have I called it "a hiring freeze"
internally?  Yes, I have.  And that's on me, but
that's not the Board's direction, and we certainly
understand.  

That point of using that slang was to put
people on notice that we're going to look at each
one of these positions individually.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you for that
clarification.  
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Then when it comes to the report on

discounted use of the venues, has all of the
appropriate documentation been submitted prior any
of the use of the venues, per our resolution?

MR. MAGEE:  I'll have to follow up on that
one.  I did not match it up.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  
Then my last is I'd like to better why we

have all of these zero charges?  I don't really
remember the Board ever saying that things were
going to be free.  

And I'm wondering if it's being done for
local groups because it's part of a catered event.
And if that's the case, then I'd like this report,
then, to report on what is the anticipated -- what
was the markup that was being charged, so that we
understand, you know, okay, we're not charging for
the use of venue, however, it's a catered event, and
we are charging a 33 percent markup up, or whatever
it is.  

Because, otherwise, I find it really a bit
sad to to see that we charged the high school prom
and we're not charging a golf club.  I think that it
leads things to not look very good.  It doesn't make
us look like we're very generous to very purposeful
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organizations, like Breakfast with Santa was
charged, but the golf clubs aren't charged.  

I think that we need to have a little bit
more information so that we can understand that it's
not just for free, there's part of catered event at
a 25 percent markup, or whatever it is.

So, could we ask for that?
MR. MAGEE:  Understood.  And, obviously,

there's a lot of those listed on the report and will
require a little bit of additional research.  We
will get back to the Board on that one.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Well, and I think that
they usually did reports by catered event, so I
think that staff has that information.  And I think
that it's important to denote so that we have
transparency with our community.

MR. MAGEE:  Yep.  Understood.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  It might be easier, I

mean, there's a large number of events there, but
there seem to be a consistent pattern of the same
four or five users.  I suspect it's going to be a
similar response for most of them, to it might be
slightly easier to get them than just having to look
through --

MR. MAGEE:  Absolutely.  I understand.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 207
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And we should be

consistent.  I'm looking here, the Incliners seems
to be different than the Republican Women's.  And
maybe one is dinner and one is lunch.  

But I think it's important that our
community members feel that we're treating everyone
fairly and equally.  And I think having more
information would help to show that.

That was my only comments and questions.
Anyone else on any of the reports?

Seeing none, we will close that -- unless,
Mr. Magee, you had any comments?

MR. MAGEE:  No.  I think in the interest
of time, let's just move on for tonight.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.  We will move
on, then, the long range calendar.  
I.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Pages 80 through 85.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I've talk with Mr. Magee

about this.  For the last meeting in August, we
received the food and beverage consultant's report.
I think we got it Monday, July, 29th, and I'd like
to have a staff response.  If we could get it in
writing of -- because there's a lot of low-hanging
fruit of things that can be done.  
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What the plan is in response to that food

and beverage report.  If it can't be in written, at
least an oral presentation at that point, similar to
Mr. Magee's staff response at the last meeting
regarding RubinBrown.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That's fine.  I made a
note of that.  

I have a question for the Board.  BBK's
contract is up at the end of the year.  And does the
Board want to go out to RFP?  Because if we want to
go out to RFP, we need to get that on our long range
calendar and a discussion item and decision item.  

Right now, tonight, I'm not asking if you
want to go out, I'm asking if you wanted to put it
on the agenda to discuss an RFP?

Trustee Tulloch said he believes we
should.  Any other input?  Because, realistically,
if we're just going to continue with BBK, then we
wouldn't need to have an agenda item.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I think just said in
earlier ones, I think we should certainly look at
these options.  We owe it to the community, and I'm
sure m BBK will be happy to bid on it.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other?
TRUSTEE TONKING:  I will follow suit since
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I called Ray out for it earlier today.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will put that on an
agenda.  We'll figure it out.  

I encourage my fellow trustees to review
the parking lot items, because I found one that
we're going to put on an upcoming agenda, it may be
the 28th.  But, remember, we asked for an
explanation of the rec fund admin, the admin
services, and during the budget time, we really
didn't get a good explanation of what that was.  

Mr. Magee and I talked, and so that one
will be coming on to a current agenda.  

On the 28th, it's not only Board Practice
6.1, but the updated Practice 6.2 that we gave
feedback to Ms. Herron on at our last meeting.  

The final due diligence report needs to be
added on the 28th, as well as Mr. Magee giving us a
formal progress report on the observations from the
RubinBrown.  And then I'll add the food and beverage
report.

So, we have two get on the calendar, one
of the things in the report was to talk about IVGID
Magazine, input for the annual report.  I'm going to
work to say when does marketing want that feedback.
There were a couple of things in the marketing
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report that will end up being on one of our agendas.

Anything else relative -- but I do
encourage you to read through because, Trustee
Noble, you've had things on there for a really long
time.  Either we should say we're not going to do
them or we should get them on an agenda.

TRUSTEE TONKING:  You've mentioned a town
hall.  Did you decide on a date for that?

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  No, I didn't do anything
with it.  I sort of was waiting to see what the
Board was doing tonight with this Troon idea.  

If there's a certain date that -- I know
you said end of September or November -- I'm
sorry -- end of September or early October, we can
target that.  And maybe we can target a specific
topic.  But nothing has been -- yeah.

Anything else?
Moving on to Board of Trustees updates.

J.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Sorry, guys.  I didn't

expect this to be such a long meeting.  I haven't
provided you the contracts.  I didn't do it at the
beginning in July.  So you have in the supplemental
material only the first three contracts, the new
ones that you haven't already seen.  
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And things are getting better, but you can

look, one of the contracts didn't have anything in
Exhibit A, and it was supposed to be the
contractor's bid.  That's really important to miss
that.  And then this one that I reviewed this week
was just a formatting issue where the exhibit was on
the bottom of the signature page.  That was just a
little formatting issue, but if you have an exhibit,
it should be labeled, and it wasn't.

Things are getting better, but we're still
not a hundred percent.  We'll just keep working on
it.  I just keep updating it and keeping all of your
informed, which is per the policy.

Are there any other trustee updates?
Seeing none, I'm going to move to final

public comment.  We have one here in the room.
K.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 

MS. HUSSONG-JOHNSON:  Sara
Hussong-Johnson, 785 Mays Boulevard.

I was one of those individuals that popped
in for a public comment earlier and had to leave due
to family and personal life obligations, which I
think is typical of most, but I do want you to know
that we -- that I listen and always absorb the
conversation and was very curious to hear the end of
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the Troon discussion.  

If I may just digress for a moment,
because my public comment was really related to
agenda item G 1.  But in the interest of soliciting
public comment in our community and facilitating it,
if there are items on the agenda that are published
that the board members -- excuse me -- the trustees
could discuss with the general manager and staff in
advance so that we don't have wait through long
durations of clarifying clerical errors and/or -- I
know that it's typical that those things come out,
publishes in advance, it would be great to clear
some of those questions up so the public does not
have to sit through them.  That's just my own
personal input as a member of the public who wishes
to engage with the Board.

On the item G 1, with respect to the Troon
contract, I had previously asked that the Board
should not obligate the future board and our
community to a management structure that is not
desired by the community it represents.  

And I wanted to come back here and hear
the rest of discussion, and, ultimately tonight, say
thank you for not doing that.  I feel like this is a
refreshing change, that there was a lot of public
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comment here tonight that you heard and you
absorbed, and I appreciate the fact that this is
coming back to the Board in a transparent and a
matter that considers all the public comment that
was presented at the Board tonight.  So, I really
want to say thank you.  

I also want to reiterate my public comment
that I don't think there is necessarily a need for a
false sense or urgency.  I understand that we have a
general manager that is departing, Mr. Magee.  But I
think there's an opportunity for an interim general
manager until the newly elected board is seated and
has the opportunity to form the direction of the
District, and that is essentially what they are
being elected for.  

I would ask that as you review the request
for proposal, thank you for considering that, thank
you for hearing the comment, thank you for
redirected tonight to that process.  I would ask
that you consider both an interim and a permanent
appointment to allow the community to truly allow
the Democratic process that we're all here a part of
to truly have its chance to work.

And maybe it's an interim appointment
until the new board is seated, at which point the
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new board can choose the management direction in a
permanent manner for the District.  

Thank you tonight for your thoughtful
consideration of the issue, for your transparency
towards the pubic, and for hearing our public
comment.

MS. JEZYCKI:  Michelle Jezycki.  I totally
agree, staff needs support.  And I'm putting on my
HR cap, specifically, with these comments.

I think, yes, the need support.  Staff
also needs staff.  I think that there's some big
gaping holes, and not just at the GM position.

I also hear and feel the need for speed.
I feel like the Board really wants to get these
things taken care of quickly.  And that does concern
me, and I'll get to that in a second.  

So why not appoint an interim to plug and
fill that hole in the meantime, so you can get the
download from Bobby.  You have somebody in that
position to get to download, specifically to get
that download.  And then simultaneously hire a Tyler
Muni representative or team, even, to come in -- and
if you look at those reports, a lot of it goes back
to the lack of proper migration.  

So, support staff, by providing
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training -- and that is going be a contractual
obligation of near nothing in comparison to what we
just heard tonight.  I think that would be much more
palatable, it'll be a quick hit, and a much needed
dose of education for staff.  That would be
supportive of staff.  

Also consider things like NRS 318.098, if
we have resources at the county level that we can
employ or learn from and supplement what we're
currently doing, fantastic, and it's not going to
have all this overhead and markup.

Let's see.  My concern is that rushing the
process will also risk doing it properly or getting
it done right.  I think some of these steps can be
taken into consideration and even employed
simultaneously.  

I was very encouraged by the amount of
support and the articulate nature of our community.
We have a lot of expertise that I think we could be
tapping into.

I do think an interim for Bobby's specific
need, and I think that's part of the push to get
that time frame done quickly.  That need could be
met by finding -- or appointing an interim in the
meantime.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 216
Also with the advertising, I would

recommend -- and I'm happy to provide some guidance
on this if I can -- the targeted approach for hiring
this GM, not just putting out, well, let's go to
this person, this person, or this person, but more a
targeting for where we might -- I referred to it
previously as a pond that we can fish in, there are
some areas that I think we can get some really good
results with.  

With that, thank you and good night.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any online public

comments?
MR. BELOTE:  We do, Chair.
MS. KNAAK:  Hi.  Yolanda Knaak.  
I just wanted to clarify something.  I

mentioned earlier, the committee that's having the
hearing tomorrow morning at 9:30.  People are having
trouble getting to the website, and the website is
actually State of Nevada Department of Taxation
Committee in Local Government Finance.

Thank you so much.  Bye.
MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright, Crystal Bay.

Candidate for the board.  
Well, what an interesting evening.  I kind

of have a couple questions as to Mr. Magee's
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statement that the $7 million has been found.  And I
was kind of shocked that nobody asked him for
documentation or proof or information relating to
where that money came from.  If he said it's been
rectified, let's see how it was rectified.  And I'm
surprised that no board member asked that question.
I hope they do it for me and the rest of this
community.  It's our money.  Just to take it
point-blank that, hey, it's all been fixed.  Don't
worry about.  

No, no, no, no.  We want to see how it was
fixed.  We want to see the end results.  We want to
see it in black and white.  It is there?  I don't
know.  

As far as reconciliation of the books, oh,
we're closed.  We got a couple pennies here or
there.  

Bologna.  I want to see it.  I don't
believe it.  This is huge.  And there is no board
action to ask for that documentation.  

As far as our rally queen, the person who
got this rally going tonight, it turned out pretty
good.  We had a lot of intelligent people show.  But
it's up not the type rally queen that we really
wanted, is it?  It's something else that was in the
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mind, that it backfired.  We got smart people here.
People we've never heard from.  Kind of odd.  All
these people that have all these degrees in all
those backgrounds, they've never attended a board
meeting.  I don't know where they were.  I've never
seen half of them.

As a candidate for the board, I'm walking
into a hornet's nest of garbage.  And I don't see it
being fixed.  I don't see any kind of movement to
stop the theft, the waste, the loss of our money,
the unexplained, mismanagement of funds, the
procurement cards.  What's happening with all this
stuff?  This is all in the RubinBrown report.  Why
are we not seeing a rectification of all these
things?  

And you can't tell me those procurement
cards have been taken care of.  I don't believe it.
I think it's just as bad now as it was before.
Maybe people are being a little careful about what
they are buying, but I still think they got to be
taken away.

As far as the rest of the meeting, it's
just back to the same thing.  I kind of feel sorry
for whoever wins this election, including myself.
It's not going to be easy to fix these messes.  And

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 219
we've had some people that have been on the board
that have caused the messes, and they're running for
reelection.  Give me a break.  Why would you put
anybody back in when you got this mess going on?

That's about it.  Goodnight, you guys, you
had a long night.  Talk to you later.  Bye.

MR. BELOTE:  That was our last public
comment, Chair.
L.  ADJOURNMENT 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will adjourn the
meeting on 11:17 p.m.  Thank you all for your
patient and for your participation in tonight's
meeting.

(Meeting adjourned at 11:17 p.m.)
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STATE OF NEVADA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

 
I, BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH, do hereby 

certify: 
That I was present on August 6, 2024, at 

the of the Board of Trustees public meeting, via 
Zoom, and took stenotype notes of the proceedings 
entitled herein, and thereafter transcribed the same 
into typewriting as herein appears. 

That the foregoing transcript is a full, 
true, and correct transcription of my stenotype 
notes of said proceedings consisting of 220 pages, 
inclusive. 

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this 3rd day of 
September, 2024. 
 

    /s/ Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
 

 
___________________________ 
BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH  
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INVOICE
BAVS SM-LLC

brandiavsmith@gmail.com
United States

BILL TO
Incline Village General Improvement
District
Susan Herron / Heidi White

775-832-1218
AP@ivgid.org

Invoice Number: IVGID 49

Invoice Date: September 3, 2024

Payment Due: September 6, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $1,695.00

Items Quantity Price Amount

Base fee
August 6, 2024 meeting

1 $350.00 $350.00

Per page fee
August 6, 2024 BOT meeting

220 $6.00 $1,320.00

Over 5 hours/per hour
August 6, 2024 BOT meeting

0.5 $50.00 $25.00

Total: $1,695.00

Amount Due (USD): $1,695.00
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Last week I presented this board with a seven-point program to get IVGID on an even 
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